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Our Vision, Mission & Values

Vision
To Serve Mankind.

Mission
To serve and to reach out to our patients, their families and the community,
regardless of race, colour, creed, language, culture and religion.
To rehabilitate and heal with commitment and professionalism in an
environment of continuous learning and growth.

Values
Professionalism:
Together we are committed to providing excellent
healthcare and be the best in what we do and to
achieve the best possible outcome for our patients.
Integrity:
We are committed to the highest standards of ethical
conduct in whatever we do.
Teamwork:
We will commit to promote collaborations, esprit de
corps and build trust between individuals and our
partners.
Can-do!:
We shall do our best and make the impossible possible
under all circumstances!
Heart (Communication/Compassion):
It is paramount that we serve the needs of our patients
and those who need our help with open and personal
communication and with the strongest compassion to
truly care for the welfare and well-being of our fellow
human beings.
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Message from Mr Lee Kim Siang
Chairman, Ang Mo Kio – Thye Hua Kwan Hospital

A

s part of the Thye Hua Kwan (THK)

over 1,300 patients for the purchase of assistive

family, our common vision is “To Serve

devices and to carry out home modifications over

Mankind”. We wish to reach out to all

the past year.

our patients, and provide them with quality care
in the Hospital as well as in the community.

Community Outreach
The Hospital plays an active role in reaching out

Caring with Compassion

to the community. For the past year, we have

We would like to thank our dedicated volunteers,

collaborated with community partners – People’s

who contributed their precious time in various

Association and National Healthcare Group to

ways, be it, befriending our patients, organising

conduct eight talks and workshops on preventative

group-based activities such as Bingo, organising

healthcare, reaching out to the residents in the

Karaoke sessions or conducting art and craft

central and northern regions of Singapore.

workshops. The Hospital has also introduced
animal assisted-therapy by partnering Cat-Assisted

To ensure that the Hospital continues to support

Therapy Singapore and Save Our Street Dogs, to

our patients in the community, I am also pleased

enhance patients’ social and emotional well-being.

to share that our Community Health Centre started
operations in May 2016. The centre will work closely

We are also grateful to our donors for their support

with General Practitioners to provide foot and eye

and generosity, which has enabled us to assist

screening for patients with diabetes.
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We will continue to keep in mind our mantra
“To Serve you better, always!” by delivering
quality and sustainable care for our patients. Our
achievements would not have been possible if not
for our working partners, dedicated volunteers and
committed staff.
We are grateful to the Ministry of Health for their
support and direction. We would also like to
record our heartfelt appreciation to the Agency
for Integrated Care, Singapore Tote Board and all
our donors for their support.

Mr Lee Kim Siang
Chairman
Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital
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Advisor & Board of Trustees

Advisor
Dr Koh Poh Koon
Senior Minister of State, Ministry
of Trade and Industry & Ministry
of National Development
MP for Ang Mo Kio GRC

Board of Trustees
Chairman
Prof Lim Pin DUBC
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Member
Mr Herman Hochstadt
PPA(E), PPA(G), BBM

Board of Directors
as at July 2017

Chairman
(Immediate Past)

Mr Chew Heng Ching (resigned as of 18 June 2017)

Chairman

Mr Lee Kim Siang BBM(L), BBM, PBM (appointed on 23 June 2017)

Vice Chairman/ Hon. Secretary

Mr Robert P. C. Tock

Vice Chairman

Er Chang Meng Teng JP, BBM, BBM(L), PPA(P), PBM

Hon. Treasurer

Mr Zulkifli Baharudin BBM, PBM

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Dr L. Jayaram
Er Ong Ser Huan
Ms Cheah Sheau Lan
Prof Philip Choo BBM, PPA(P), PBS
Mr Goh Geok Cheong PBM
Dr Tan Tiong Har
Mr John Teo BBM
Prof Low Cheng Hock MBBS, FRACS, FRCS, MMed, PMB, BBM, PPA(E), PPA(P), JP
Mr Chew Hai Chwee (resigned as of 7 July 2017)
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Board of Directors
as at July 2017
Mr Lee Kim Siang BBM(L), BBM, PBM
Managing Director (Honorary) & Chairman
Mr Lee is the Chairman for Thye Hua Kwan Moral
Society and Thye Hua Kwan Moral Charities Limited,
a voluntary welfare organisation that runs more than
70 centres and services islandwide.
Mr Lee is currently a member of the Care and Share
Steering Committee, a national fundraising and
volunteerism movement led by the Community Chest

since 2013 under the Ministry of Social
and Family Development. He is also a
member of the Responsible Gambling
Forum, formed by the Ministry of Social
and Family Development since 2013,
with the aim of promoting responsible
gambling practices across all forms of
gambling in Singapore.

Mr Robert P.C. Tock
Vice Chairman/Hon. Secretary
Mr Robert Tock is a practising advocate and solicitor
who is presently the sole proprietor of the law firm,
Rodrigo, Tock and Wilson.
Mr Tock, also sits on the board of Thye Hua Kwan
(THK) Moral Charities as Hon. Secretary and
THK Nursing Home as Vice Chairman. He is also

the Chairman of the Management
Committee of various homes, namely
Moral Home for the Intellectually
Disabled, Moral Home for the Disabled
Adults, Moral Welfare Home, Angsana
Home and Banyan Home.

Er Chang Meng Teng JP, BBM, BBM(L), PPA(P), PBM
Vice Chairman
Er Chang is a registered licensed Professional Engineer
of PE Board. He left the former Public Utilities Board
in 1979 to form and head the Squire Mech Pte Ltd,
a Mechanical & Electrical engineering practice. He
is active in both the engineering fraternity and civic
organisations. He was the President of Institution
of Engineers, Singapore and the Society of Project
Managers.
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He had served on many committees
and statutory boards of Government
Ministries. Er Chang is currently a Board
Member of the Energy Market Authority
and a Fellow of the Singapore Academy
of Engineering.

Mr Zulkifli Baharudin BBM, PBM
Hon. Treasurer
Mr Zulkifli Baharudin is the Executive Chairman of
Indo-Trans Corporation, a logistics and supply chain
company across Indo-China. Mr Zulkifli Baharudin
is also Singapore’s Non-Resident Ambassador to
the Republic of Uzbekistan and the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

Mr Zulkifli is an Independent Director
of Singapore Post Limited, Ascott
Residence Trust Limited and Trustee of
the Singapore Management University.

Ms Cheah Sheau Lan
Member
Ms Cheah Sheau Lan is a Chartered Accountant
registered with the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants. She is a retired corporate executive
and currently sits on the board and/or committee
of voluntary welfare organisations including Thye
Hua Kwan Moral Charities, Singhealth Foundation
and the Tsao Foundation.

She was previously the General
Manager of Corporate Development
at Pan-United Corporation Ltd, a SGX
Listed company. Prior to that, she was
an Assistant Director in a Singapore
based private equity firm specialising
in mezzanine financing for growing
companies in the Asian region.

Dr L. Jayaram
Member
Dr Jayaram Lingamanaicker is one of the leading
cardiologists recognised for his expertise in
performing Balloon Angioplasty and stenting. He
has more than 20 years of experience in Clinical
Medicine and Cardiology.

he later became Senior Consultant and
Head of the Division of Cardiology. Dr
Jayaram practices at Mount Elizabeth
Hospital currently and is also a senior
lecturer at National University of
Singapore.

He also served as a Consultant Interventional
Cardiologist based at Changi General Hospital, where
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Board of Directors
as at July 2017
Prof Philip Choo BBM, PPA(P), PBS
Member
Professor Philip Choo is the Group Chief Executive
Officer for National Healthcare Group.
Professor Choo is well-recognised as a Geriatrician
with more than 20 years of experience. He was
awarded TTSH Doctor of the Year in 1996.

International Medical Centre, Ren Ci
Hospital, Integrated Health Information
Systems Pte Ltd and The Courage
Fund Limited. He also sits on various
Ministry of Health Committees and is a
member of the Lee Kong Chian School
of Medicine Governing Board.

Professor Choo currently serves on several
Boards which includes Johns Hopkins Singapore

Er Ong Ser Huan
Member
Er Ong Ser Huan has over 45 years of experience
as a Professional Engineer and also serves in the
disciplinary committees of Singapore Law Society
and Singapore Medical Council. He was President of
the Institution of Engineers Singapore (1998-2000),
and was elected as Chairman of Asean Federation
of Engineering Organisations.

Er Ong also serves as the Chairman of
the Serangoon Moral Family Service
Centre, Vice Chairman of the Thye Hua
Kwan Moral Society and Banyan Home.

Mr Goh Geok Cheong PBM
Member
Mr Goh Geok Cheong is the Managing Director
of ABV Engineering Pte Ltd. He has more than 35
years of experience in civil engineering and was
involved in several patent inventions and innovation
development.
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Mr Goh is also the Chairman for
Kaki Bukit Community Centre and
the ambassador for the Singapore
Corporation of Rehabilitative Enterprise.
Mr Goh is also member of the Institution
of Engineers Singapore.

Dr Tan Tiong Har
Member
Dr Tan Tiong Har who was awarded the Colombo
Plan Scholarship for Medicine is a pulmonologist
who recently retired from private practice at
Gleneagles Medical Centre. He has more than 40
years of experience in respiratory medicine. He was
previously Consultant Physician, (Deputy Head)
Department Of Medicine IV and subsequently the
Head of Department of Tuberculosis Control at
Tan Tock Seng Hospital.

He then ventured into Private Practice
while serving as a Visiting Consultant
at Changi General Hospital and TTSH.
He is also the Medical Director at Metta
Home Services.

Mr John Teo Woon Keng BBM
Member
Mr John Teo was the chief financial officer of
Singapore Pools for over 14 years. He assumed the
appointment of its chief risk officer in June 2017.
Prior to that, he has held senior appointments in
several organisations, from an investment holding
company, a tertiary teaching hospital and an

international public accounting firm.
He also serves on the management
committee of several non-profit
organisations, including a cluster
operator serving elderly seniors.

Prof Low Cheng Hock MBBS, FRACS, FRCS, MMed, PMB, BBM, PPA(E), PPA(P), JP
Member
Prof Low Cheng Hock is currently an Emeritus
Consultant at Tan Tock Seng Hospital, Department
of Surgery. He is also an Advisor to the NHG College
(National Healthcare Group) and Consultant at MOH
Division of Finance (Medisave Audit). He is a Clinical
Professor at NUS Yong Loo Lin School of Medicine

and Adjunct Professor of Surgery at
Lee Kong Chian Medical School. He was
previously Chairman, Medical Board,
TTSH, past Master of the Academy of
Medicine and past President of the
Singapore Medical Association.
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Standing Board Committees
as at July 2017

Executive Committee

Audit Committee

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member

Mr Lee Kim Siang
Mr Robert P.C. Tock
Er Chang Meng Teng
Mr Zulkifli Baharudin
Dr L. Jayaram
Ms Cheah Sheau Lan

Building Committee
Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

Er Chang Meng Teng
Mr Robert P.C. Tock
Mr Lee Kim Siang
Mr Zulkifli Baharudin
Mr Goh Geok Cheong

Ms Cheah Sheau Lan
Er Ong Ser Huan

Establishment and
Remuneration Committee
Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Mr Robert P.C. Tock
Er Chang Meng Teng
Er Ong Ser Huan
Mr John Teo Woon Keng

Nominations Committee

Finance Committee

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
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Mr Lee Kim Siang
Prof Philip Choo
Er Ong Ser Huan
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Mr Zulkifli Baharudin
Mr Lee Kim Siang
Dr L. Jayaram
Mr Shabbir Hassanbhai PBM
Mr John Teo Woon Keng

Investment Committee

Programmes Committee

Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Mr Zulkifli Baharudin
Mr Lee Kim Siang
Ms Cheah Sheau Lan

Dr L. Jayaram
Prof Philip Choo
Mr Lee Kim Siang
Dr Tan Tiong Har

Tender Committee
Chairman
Member
Member

Mr Robert P.C. Tock
Er Chang Meng Teng
Mr Goh Geok Cheong

Medifund Committee

Medical Advisory Board

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Dr S. Vasoo
Mr M. N. Swami
Mr Chan Chee Keong PBM
Mr Tan Chong Hai
Dr Abdul Razakjr Omar

Emeritus Prof Edward Tock Peng Chong
Prof Low Cheng Hock
A/Prof Goh Lee Gan PPA(E), BBM
Dr Lee Kheng Hin
Prof Tay Boon Keng PBM
A/Prof Chin Jing Jih
Prof Ng Han Seong
A/Prof Thomas Lew Kepujian
A/Prof Pang Weng Sun
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Corporate Governance Statement
as at July 2017

Board of Directors
The Board’s role is to provide overall leadership for the strategic direction of the Hospital’s operations.
In line with corporate governance, the Hospital has renewed the Board membership in this financial year.
We have appointed 1 new Board member from Tan Tock Seng Hospital and 2 Board members have resigned.
All the Board members of the Hospital have accepted their roles without remuneration and are committed
to serve the Hospital and to bring a better level of healthcare services to our patients and the community.
Under the guidance of our Chairman and the Board members, the Hospital has undergone more stringent
reviews of processes that are in compliance with good Corporate Governance. In performing its duties,
the Board of Directors have maintained effective working relationships with the Hospital’s Management.

Conflict of Interest Policy
All Board members, employees and volunteers of the Hospital are required to read and understand the
conflict of interest policy and make full disclosure of any interests, relationships and holdings that could
potentially result in a conflict of interest. When a conflict of interest situation arises, the person(s) involved
shall abstain from participating in the discussion(s) and/or decision making on the matter concerned.

Whistleblowing Policy
The Hospital is committed to uphold our staff’s integrity and ethical behaviour by fostering and maintaining
an environment whereby employees can act appropriately without fear of retaliation.
To maintain these standards, the Hospital has in place a whistle-blowing policy that allows employees
who have concerns about suspected serious misconduct to come forward and express their concerns
without fear of punishment or unfair treatment.
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S/No.

Code Description

Compliance

1

Are there Board members holding staff appointments?

No

4

There is a maximum term limit of four consecutive years for the
Complied
Treasurer position (or equivalent, e.g. Finance Committee Chairman).		

5

The Board conducts regular self-evaluation to assess its performance
Complied
and effectiveness. 		

6

There are Board committees (or designated Board members) with
Complied
documented terms of reference.		

7

The Board meets regularly with a quorum of at least one-third or
Complied
at least three members, whichever is greater
(or as required by the governing instrument).		

8

There are documented procedures for Board members and staff to
Complied
declare actual or potential conflicts of interest to the Board.		

9

Board members do not vote or participate in decision-making
Complied
on matters where they have a conflict of interest.		

10

The Board reviews and approves the vision and mission of the charity.
Complied
They are documented and communicated to its members and the public.		

11

The Board approves and reviews a strategic plan for the charity to
ensure that the activities are in line with its objectives.

Complied

12

The Board approves documented human resource policies for staff.

Complied

13

There are systems for regular supervision, appraisal and professional
Complied
development of staff.		

14

There is a system to address grievances and resolve conflicts.

Complied

15

The Board ensures internal control systems for financial matters are
in place with documented procedures.

Complied

16

The Board ensures reviews on the charity’s controls, processes,
Complied
key programmes and events.		

17

The Board approves an annual budget for the charity’s plans and
regularly monitors its expenditure.

Complied

18

The charity discloses its reserves policy in the annual report.

Complied

19

Does the charity invest its reserves?

Yes

20

The Charity invests its reserves in accordance with an investment
policy approved by the Board. It obtains advice from qualified
professional advisors, if deemed necessary by the Board.

Complied

21

Donations collected are properly recorded and promptly
deposited by the charity.

Complied

22

The charity makes available to its stakeholders an annual report that
Complied
includes information on its programmes, activities, audited financial
statements, Board members and executive management.		

23

Are Board members remunerated for their Board services?

No

26

Does the charity employ paid staff?

Yes

27

No staff is involved in setting his or her own remuneration.

Complied

28

The charity discloses in its annual report the annual remuneration
Complied
of its three highest paid staff who each receives remuneration
exceeding $100,000, in bands of $100,000. If none of its top
three highest paid staff receives more than $100,000 in annual
remuneration each, the charity discloses this fact.		

29

The charity accurately portrays its image to its members, donors
and the public.

Remarks

Complied
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Management Staff

9

10
7

11

8

12

13

14

15

1
6

2
3

4

1. Frank Lee Chin Ping
Director, Human Resource

6. Sinha Satyabrata Shekhar
Director, Allied Health

2. Dr Kelvin Phua
Director, Medical Services

7.

3. Dr Stella Wee
Chief Executive Officer

8. Low Chui Yan
Manager, Pharmacy

13. Janice Li
Assistant Manager, Service Quality

4. Lim Teck Joo
Director, Finance

9. Karthikeyan Palaney
Executive, Purchasing

5. A/Prof Edward Poon
Chief Nurse

10. Lau Tze Ching
Acting Head, Senior Dietitian

14. Tan Ying Yan
Acting Head, Care & Counselling/
Senior Medical Social Worker

18

Catherine Tan
Principal Physiotherapist
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11. Siti Zubaidah
Principal Occupational Therapist
12. Dr Jocelyn Koh
Assistant Director, Medical Services

5

18
16

17

20
19

21

22

15. John Ang
Director, Operations

20. Kevin Chiam
Assistant Director of Nursing

16. Chionh Yang Kok
Assistant Director of Nursing

21. Puteri Arella Suman
Manager, Business Development

17. Ng Chun Yian
Executive, Operations

22. Ong Sing
Senior Manager,
Management Information Systems

18. Bernard Lee
Center Manager,
Community Health Centre (CHC)
19. David Yong
Manager, Referrals & Admissions
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About Us
Ang Mo Kio – Thye Hua Kwan Hospital is a community hospital providing rehabilitative
and sub-acute care. Using a patient-centered approach, our healthcare team
provides a personalised and comprehensive plan for each patient at AMK-THKH.
We strive to help our patients achieve independence and assist them in their
integration back into the society.
The Hospital works closely with Restructured Hospitals (RHs) to refer patients
to us. About 88% of our patients are referred by Tan Tock Seng Hospital (TTSH),
Singapore General Hospital (SGH) and Khoo Teck Puat Hospital (KTPH).

Top 3 sources of referrals
Tan Tock Seng Hospital

1,597

2017

1,369

2016

Singapore General Hospital
2017

951

2016

949

Khoo Teck Puat Hospital
2017
2016

20
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476
836

About 78.4% of the patients admitted to AMK-THKH are
above 65 years of age. The Hospital cares for patients with
a range of medical conditions, majority of whom require
rehabilitation after fracture, stroke, and spinal conditions.

Patient working on an artwork with a volunteer on arts
and crafts day

Top 10 medical conditions of patients for FY2017

29%

17%

15%

14%

6%

Fracture of
Femur

Stroke

Neurological
disorder
including
epilepsy

Musculoskeletal
disorder

Lung Disease/
Pneumonia

4%

4%

4%

3%

3%

Infections

Digestive
System
disorder

Cancer

Urological
diseases

Skin and
subcutaneous
tissue
diseases
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Overview
Average Bed Occupancy

Discharge Destination

84.60%
FY2017

Total no. of discharged patients

2,791

90.48%
FY2016

Home

66.1%

Total Inpatient Days

Readmissions to
Restructured Hospitals
& Private Hospitals

111,109
FY2017

28%

115,663
FY2016

Nursing Homes &
Community
Shelters

Admissions by numbers

4.3%

2,775
FY2017

Others (Transfer to
other Community
Hospitals, Death cases)

2,799

1.5%

FY2016

Quality Indicators
CAUTI

Med Errors

*1000 Catheter Days

*1000 Patient Days

Falls

Pressure Sores

*1000 Patient Days

*1000 Patient Days

6.3

5.8

5.0

2.71
1.4
0.27

FY2017

22

1.4
0

0.3

1.7
0.01

FY2016
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0.3

FY2015

1.4
0.01

0.3

FY2014

0.05

Hospital Expansion

The Hospital’s building expansion project commenced in
2014, which saw the addition of a new South Wing Ward
and an increase in the number of beds from 250 to 360.
This was planned to meet the increasing demand for
community hospital services in Singapore. In view of the
ageing population, the South Wing Ward was specifically
designed for geriatric patients.

The second phase of building expansion is expected to be
completed by the third quarter of 2017, and this comprises
the construction of a new six-storey administration block,
and a four-storey annex block, and the expansion of carpark’s
capacity from 90 to 120 parking lots. The carpark has also
been equipped with a fully-automated electronic parking
system. The following projects are also in progress:

Addition of 10 new
isolation rooms

Expansion of gym and
rehabilitation spaces

10 new isolation rooms will be added
to cater to patients who require
close observation, medical care and
management.

Addition of 170 square metre of gym
and rehabilitation spaces to cater to
more patients and an expansion of
services.

Minor improvement works
Minor improvement works are
being carried out under the cyclical
maintenance schedule to upkeep our
facilities. These include upgrading of
lifts, internal painting of walls, corridors
and common areas and re-laying of
road. The upgrading works will cost
about $0.8 million.

ANG MO KIO - THYE HUA KWAN HOSPITAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017
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Therapist
assisting
a patient
with
her rehab
therapy
24 ANG MO
KIO - THYE
HUA KWAN
HOSPITAL
ANNUAL
REPORT 2016/2017

Providing
Seamless
Care

Reminiscence Therapy
Electronic Meal Ordering System
Stroke Management Care Pathway
Hip Fracture Care Pathway
External Medical Coverage
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Providing Seamless Care

Nurse spending time with the patient

Reminiscence
Therapy

360
Patients

have benefited from
Reminiscence Therapy
IN FY2017

26

ANG MO KIO - THYE HUA KWAN HOSPITAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

In FY2017, we introduced Reminiscence Therapy (RT) as one of
the treatments our speech therapists employ during cognitive
communication group sessions for dementia patients.
Targeted to improve mood, cognition, and overall wellbeing, RT involves the discussion of specific past activities,
events and experiences with the patient, usually with the aid
of tangible prompts such as photographs, household and
other familiar items from the past, music and archive sound
recordings. Initially started with three to four patients per
session, the programme has expanded to six to 10 patients
per session to accommodate the growing interest.
In addition, our speech therapists developed a new cognitive
communication screener form to better rate and evaluate
patient’s pragmatics during RT sessions.

Providing Seamless Care

Electronic Meal
Ordering System
To provide our patients with a seamless experience, we
launched the Electronic Meal Ordering System (EMOS) which
helps to process patients’ meal requirements through a single
contact point. EMOS has led to improved accuracy, increased
productivity, and higher meal satisfaction.

“

Before EMOS was launched, I used
to fill in all the patients’ meals
details in an excel sheet and email
to the kitchen daily. Whenever there
were changes in meal preference or
requirements, I needed to make
changes in the excel sheet manually
and email the kitchen again. With
EMOS, this daily task becomes much
easier as everything is automated.
It has helped to reduce human error
and free up my time to perform
other important tasks.

”
Nurse

Stroke Management
Care Pathway
Managed in partnership with Tan Tock Seng Hospital (TTSH)
and the National Neuroscience Institute (NNI), the Stroke
Management Care Pathway facilitates the smooth transfer
of stroke patients from TTSH to our hospital, as well as
provides training for our clinicians to better manage stroke
patients. Suitable patients for the programme are identified
by rehabilitation specialists early in their admission at TTSH
to facilitate early transfer to us for rehabilitation. Joint clinical
sessions with TTSH Department of Rehabilitation and NNI
are conducted regularly to share knowledge and expertise
to benefit our patients.

47

Patients
have been cared for under
the Stroke Management Care
Pathway programme
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Providing Seamless Care

Patient performing their routine exercise with the assistance of 2 therapists

Hip Fracture Care
Pathway

28
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In collaboration with Tan Tock Seng Hospital and Khoo Teck
Phuat Hospital, we launched the Hip Fracture Care Pathway
in 2012 to facilitate the timely transfer of patients with hip
fractures from the acute hospitals to AMK-THKH. Suitable
patients benefit from early post-operative rehabilitation
and better care coordination from the acute hospital to the
intermediate and long term care (ILTC) setting. In FY2017,
212 patients benefited from this programme.

Providing Seamless Care

External Medical
Coverage
THK Nursing Home
THK Nursing Home @ Hougang is a new 7-storey nursing
home with 285 beds which opened in 2016. From October
2016, our team of doctors started providing medical coverage
for the residents. They visit the nursing home three times a
week and are involved in the assessment of new admissions,
formulation of care plans, and the review of minor acute
illnesses as well as chronic disease management. They also
assess re-admissions, discuss future care plans and the End
of Life Issues with family members, and review residents’
care plan and medication every six months.
The team also provides the medical services to the residents
at Angsana Home.

10

Patients
are attended to by
our doctors at each session

Thye Hua Kwan Free Clinic
Through the Thye Hua Kwan Free Clinic, our doctors attend
to the medical needs of the community at Paya Lebar Way
every Tuesday evening. Patients include those who require
chronic medication such as hypertensives and diabetics, as
well as those with acute problems such as upper respiratory
tract infections and aches and pains.

Dog Therapy

40

We implemented dog therapy in December 2016 to help
improve social, emotional, or cognitive functioning of our
patients. Started off as an externally engaged service, our
dog therapy now involves four volunteer dogs. In March
2017, the service was on trial for our dementia patients.

Patients

have participated in the
programme since its inception
ANG MO KIO - THYE HUA KWAN HOSPITAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017
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Patient
crafting
an artwork
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her daily
activity session
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Empowering
The Community

Caregiver Training Programme
Fall Prevention Group
Parkinson Disease Group Therapy
Volunteer Involvement
Integrated Rehabilitation
Programme
Volunteer Support - Esther’s Story
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Empowering The Community

Doctor and nurses having a discussion regarding a patient in the ward

Caregiver Training
Programme

39
Basic

Elder Care Courses
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Our Caregiver Training Programme aims to equip caregivers,
including foreign domestic workers, with the necessary
skills and empower them to care for their loved ones
upon discharge from the hospital. Instead of conducting
our Caregiver Training Programme in a classroom setting,
we provide training to caregivers in the comfort of their
homes. This ensures that the training takes place in a natural
environment where the patient and caregiver are most
familiar with.

Empowering The Community

Fall Prevention Group
In Singapore, about one-third of older persons aged 60 and
above have fallen more than once. Many of these falls result in
injury, such as fractures, soft tissue or head injuries and other
serious injuries, which may in turn lead to increased morbidity
and mortality. It is vital for us to equip the community with
knowledge and skills that can help to reduce falls.
Conducted once a week and in various languages such
as English, Mandarin, Hokkien, Malay, and Tamil, our
Fall Prevention Group service educates patients on fall
prevention techniques that can be applied at home and in
the community. In FY2017, we enhanced the delivery of the
course by employing scenario-based methodology, which
includes setup of real scenarios, including more problemsolving and interactive activities, and using other mediums
such as the Activities of Daily Living (ADL) cards.

229
Patients

participated in the Falls
Prevention Group

Parkinson Disease
Group Therapy
A service provided by our Day Rehabilitation Centre (DRC),
the Parkinson Disease Group Therapy caters to DRC’s patients
with Idiopathic Parkinson’s disease and Parkinsonism
symptoms. Specific exercises are planned for the group
therapy to improve patients’ voice volume, trunk rotation,
gait, co-ordination of upper and lower limbs, balance, and
consequently, improve their quality of life.
Held weekly, the service began in April 2016 and also serves
as a support group for our patients. The support group is
significant to our patients as it allows them to exchange
practical information, share experiences, and cope with
day-to-day challenges of living with Parkinson’s disease.
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Empowering The Community

Volunteer
Involvement
We engage and empower individuals and groups in our
community to contribute and give back to the society through
meaningful volunteering programmes. Our volunteers are
the pillar of support in providing comfort and companionship
to our patients.
As of FY2017, the Hospital had 980 volunteers, of which 208
of them are volunteering on a regular basis. We also have
working individuals and students from 7 organisations and
15 schools volunteering with us. For last year, our volunteers
clocked in a total of 11,086 volunteer hours.

Therapist and patient crafting an art piece together
based, arts & craft, and group therapy activities in October
2016. Examples of activities conducted were playing
basketball, painting, and weaving. Initially targeted at stroke
patients, the programme has expanded to include dementia
and palliative patients.

reLEARN
We started reLEARN, a holistic volunteer programme that
engages patients physically and mentally through sports-

The sessions are held daily for one to two hours and each
reLEARN session is conducted by four to six volunteers.

Integrated
Rehabilitation
Programme
The Integrated Rehabilitation Programme (IRP) is a
collaborative effort comprised of our therapy assistants,
caregivers, and volunteers who have undergone training
to conduct the programme. The IRP aims to maximise the
rehabilitation potential of patients through therapy that
cuts across different disciplines. Activities are designed to
reflect patients’ experiences in a non-hospital setting to
help them better integrate back into the community after
their discharge.
Through this programme, our patients engage in various
activities and exercises throughout the day, including
morning exercises and walks, bedside exercises, standing
group activities, and seated group activities such as art
& craft, Bingo, Karaoke. The IRP also started offering dog
therapy services since March 2017.

34
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Therapist and patient playing a therapy game

857

New Patients
were referred to the IRP progamme
and 1,188 patients who had
undergone the IRP programme
were discharged

Empowering The Community

Volunteer Support - Esther’s Story

“

M any people are afraid of
volunteering because it is a
commitment that takes up time.
My advice is that give it a try, else
you will never know the difference
you can make.

”

Esther Teo, Volunteer

Life threw Esther a curveball when she suffered a stroke all
of a sudden in 2015. Fortunately, it was a mild stroke and
she was discharged from Tan Tock Seng Hospital after a
two-week stay. Esther began her post-stroke rehabilitation
at Ang Mo Kio – Thye Hua Kwan Hospital (AMK-THKH) where
she recovered fully after a month of therapy.
Although she was already an ex-patient, Esther became a
familiar face in AMK-THKH by becoming a regular volunteer
with the Hospital after her discharge.
“During my stay here, I benefited from the programmes
supported by volunteers. I played Bingo, and learned how
to make roses with pandan leaves and plastic bags. More
importantly, my afternoons here as a patient were spent
meaningfully.”

Inspired to pay it forward, Esther started to take up
classes that taught her how to make bead crafts. She
uses the skills acquired to conduct fun and interesting
craft lessons for the patients. Conscious of some of the
patients’ mobility, she customises the lessons according to
the ability of her learners. In her own time, she broadens
her craft skills by reading related books and watching
YouTube videos.
There were times when ex-patients approached her
outside of the Hospital as they remembered her. Once,
a patient told Esther that her grandchildren liked the
bead craft that she made during the craft session. Such
occasions motivate her and remind her of her purpose
as a volunteer.
Esther volunteers three times a week at AMK-THKH. Other
than bead classes, she supports other activity sessions
such as karaoke and flower making.
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Care For
The Future

Home Healthcare Programme
Tele-rehabilitation trial
Community Health Centre
Aged Care Transition (ACTION)
Collaboration with Institute of higher
learning programme
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Care For The Future

Home
Healthcare

Doctor prescribing medicine to the patient at home

Home Healthcare
Programme

Home Medical

169

With a rapidly ageing population, we recognise the
importance of helping our seniors age in the comfort of
their own homes.
Funded by the Tote Board Community Healthcare Fund,
our Home Healthcare Programme helps patients transit
seamlessly from the hospital back to the community by
providing continuous post-discharge home care. As of March
2017, our multidisciplinary team of nurses, therapists, and
doctors have provided holistic care to 684 patients since
the programme’s inception in November 2014.

230

New Patients
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Home Nursing

520

Home Therapy

174

Care For The Future

Tele-rehabilitation trial
We collaborated with the National University of Singapore
(NUS) on a tele-rehabilitation study which recruited 29
control and 29 intervention subjects. In the comfort of their
homes, our stroke and Day Rehabilitation Centre patients
performed exercises with guidance from videos on ipads.
They wore sensors that detected their movements and
received timely feedback if they did not attain the desired
movements.
The tele-rehab system performs supervised rehabilitation
exercises from home which potentially alleviates stress and
inconvenience suffered by caregivers and patients who would
otherwise have to travel to rehab centres.

“

The tele-rehab app allows my
father to do monitored exercises
in the comfort of our home. It
helps to improve his condition as
it encourages him to stay active
beyond the therapy sessions.

”

Mr Wong Chee Wai, age 46, son of
Mr Wong Chee Ee (patient of AMK-THKH)

Therapist conducting a tele-rehab session with a patient
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Care For The Future

CHC manager conducting a Diabetic Retinal Photography session

Looking to the model of care for the future as it shifts beyond
the hospital to the community, we launched a Community
Health Centre (CHC) in May 2016. The CHC provides
convenience to the community by offering Diabetic Health
Services such as the Diabetic Retinal Photography, Diabetic
Foot Screening, Nurse Counselling & Education and Dietetic
Services. Patients can access these services by visiting
their General Practitioners (GPs) to obtain a referral for
these services.

Community Health
Centre

As of 31 March 2017, the new service has already served
462 patients and conducted 794 screenings. We also have
on board 52 GP clinics that refer their patients to us.

369 367 24
Patients

Patients

Patients

34

Diabetic Retinal
Photography

Diabetic Foot
Screening

Outpatient Nurse
Counselling

Outpatient Diabetics
Consultation
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Patients

Care For The Future

Aged Care Transition (ACTION)
Our ACTION team’s care coordinators
support patients with complex care
needs to return home successfully after
discharge from hospitals. To ensure that
our patients are able to transit well to the
home setting, we conduct home visits and
help to arrange community care services
for them when necessary. We also provide
caregiver training to ensure that they and
their families are able to manage and
cope well at home. This results in a better
patient experience overall, and helps to
minimise unnecessary re-admissions.

“

I find it satisfying when I am able to help patients
transit smoothly back to the community upon
discharge. Patients generally find it more assuring
when we visit them, give them advice and clarify
any doubts they may have during the transition.
We also support them by arranging for community
services when necessary to help them meet their
daily needs at home.

”
370
Care Coordinator

Patients

received assistance through
this programme

Collaboration with
Institute of higher
learning programme

As part of our strategy to develop a learning hub, our
Human Resource department collaborated with Singapore
Management University students to create and automate a
Visitor Management System which stores visitors’ particulars
and visit details. This system becomes very useful during
times of need such as in an epidemic. Compared with the
old process which relied on manual entries by staff, this new
system increases our efficiency and accuracy for contact
tracing purposes.
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A Strong
Serving Core

Staff Achievements
Staff Language Skills Enhancement
Clinical Fellows Programme
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A Strong Serving Core

Staff Achievements
Singapore Health Quality Service Awards

Healthcare Humanity Award

A total of 198 staff were recognised at the Singapore Health
Quality Service Awards (SHQSA) 2017 Ceremony for their
contributions and dedication towards quality patient care
and excellent service. Held on January 17 2017, the awards
ceremony was graced by Mr Chee Hong Tat, Minister of State,
Ministry of Communications and Information & Ministry
of Health. Among the winners, 37 of our staff received the
Star Award.

Ms Tan Ying Yan, Senior Medical Social Worker, received the
Healthcare Humanity Awards (HHA) 2017 for going beyond
her call of duty to assist patients in need. She was presented
the award by Health Minister Gan Kim Yong, on April 25 2017.

The SHQSA Awards honour the achievements, dedication
and commitment to Service Excellence of healthcare staff
to heighten appreciation for the value that they bring to
improving patients’ lives.

The Healthcare Humanity Awards, which started in 2003,
honour healthcare workers who are inspirational role models
for going the extra mile to offer care and comfort to the sick
and infirmed.

Nurses’ Merit Award
Senior Nurse Manager Tan Chwee Say Moi received the
Nurses’ Merit Award 2017 on 7 July 2017 for going beyond
the call of duty.
The Nurses’ Merit Award which started in 1976 honours
nurses with outstanding performance and dedication to the
nursing profession.

“
”

The support and encouragement
I receive from colleagues have kept
me going for over 40 years.

Tan - Chwee Say Moi, Senior Nurse Manager
Nurses’ Merit Award 2017 Recipient
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A Strong Serving Core

Volunteer spends time with the patient

Staff Language
Skills Enhancement

Clinical Fellows
Programme

Jointly organised with the Agency for Integrated Care, a total
of 35 foreign clinical staff from Nursing and Allied Health
Departments took up Hokkien dialect classes to enhance
their communications and interaction skills with patients as
well as their caregivers in FY2016/2017.

Our Nursing Department provides comprehensive nursing
services and is heavily involved in clinical, education
and research. In February 2017, the Department started
collaborating with the Singapore Institute of Technology
on a Clinical Fellows Programme to enhance the sharing of
delivery of care to patients in a multi-disciplinary unit.

35
Foreign

clinical staff took up
Hokkien dialect classes
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Events @ A Glance

Official Opening
of the Community
Health Centre

Minister of State from the Ministry of National Development
& Ministry of Trade and Industry and MP for Ang Mo Kio
GRC, Dr Koh Poh Koon, officiated the opening of our
Community Health Centre on 21 September 2016. Dr Koh,
who is also the Hospital’s Advisor, toured the Hospital facilities
and viewed the ongoing building expansion project after the
ceremony with his team.
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Events @ A Glance

Reaching Out
Seminars and
Workshops

Dietician conducting a healthy lifestyle class at
THK Seniors Activity Centre

The Hospital partners various organisations including the
People’s Association and the Thye Hua Kwan Moral Charities
to reach out and educate the residents in the community
on healthcare issues. A series of health talks covering
topics relating to active ageing, managing diabetes, stroke
and fall preventions are organised in the community
centres and Senior Activity Centres. This initiative saw 13
healthcare talks that were organised and we were able to
reach out to more than 300 seniors in FY2016/2017.

Lunar New Year
Festive Cheer from
Anderson Primary
School
Some 60 children from Anderson Primary School visited
AMK-THKH on 4 February 2017 with gift bags containing
mandarin oranges for our patients during the Lunar New
Year period. Led by their music instructor, the children also
performed some festive song numbers for our patients in the
wards. The yearly visit has created an opportunity for both
organisations to strengthen goodwill and a close relationship.

A student from Anderson Primary School presenting
some festive cheer to the patient

A group of students from Anderson Primary School visited the hospital during the Lunar New Year celebration
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新加坡

Media
Coverage
街访街坊
少年笔下有智慧

何惜薇

报道

hosb@sph.com.sg

今日触点

手好书法，过去七八年来频频
得奖。他说：“在学习书法的
过程中，我领悟到‘天下无难
12事 ， 只 怕 有 心 人 ’
‘只 要 功 夫

Gah!

深，铁棒磨成针’的道理。”

Gaya Hidup · Artistik · Hiburan

陆楷俊（14岁）来自书法世
Sejak
kebelakangan ini, kes
家，不仅他的祖父和父亲自幼练
haiwan peliharaan seperti
书法，他的兄姐也不例外。耳濡
kucing yang didera dan
dibunuh secara kejam
目染下，陆楷俊也对书法产生兴
banyak tersebar di media
sosial. Walhal, kucing
趣，在识字不多的时候，就已经
Kumpulan pencinta kucing dan institusi kesihatan bergabung bantu pemulihan
dikatakan mampu memberi
拿着毛笔似模似样地“挥毫”。
kesan positif pada
kesihatan manusia, dengan
于是，父亲决定教他握毛笔
seseorang
hanya membelai
dan berbual dengan
的正确方法和基本笔法，为他打
haiwan itu. Apakah
好了基本功。
kesan-kesan positif itu?
Wartawan Berita Minggu
念小学一年级时，陆楷俊的
FARID
HAMZAH
(farid@sph.com.sg)
一手好字获老师赏识，推选他参
melaporkan.
‘NENEK SAYANG
加校内挥春比赛。比赛前，没把
COMEL’: Itulah yang
dikatakan Cik
比赛放在心上的陆楷俊跌倒擦伤
Rogayah Osman
PISANG berbiji di tepi paya
tatkala menerima陆楷俊去年12月参加《联合早报》举办的“字述一年”年度汉字书法
Burung pekaka masih berbunyi
脸，但他不肯放弃比赛，忍痛上
kunjungan kucing
比赛，获得学生组的冠军。（梁伟康摄）
Kucing menjadi sahabat setia
comel ini yang
阵，待呈上参赛作品后，才由母
Teman bermanja ketika sunyi

●商人谋杀妻情夫罪成
展期判刑

牛车水农历新年综艺晚会
Berita Minggu | 3 April 2016

●碧山金山岭咖啡店
吊销营业执照一天

（20时－22时30分，至27日，牛
车水广场，免费）
本地艺人及中国剧团呈献中华文
化表演、新春歌曲和歌舞音乐等
表演。
网址：chinatownfestivals.sg

pesakit dengan bantuan si comel

讲座

新年掌握新技能
技能创前程培训补助金推
出一年了，你用了吗？55
个领域的1万7000多个课程
要怎么选？
http://bit.ly/zb_scredit
扫描QR码
了解如何选择
适合自己的课程

PELIHARA KUCING

陪你看报纸MEREKA
yang berminat
mahu mengambil kucing

sebagai haiwan
（10时－11时，每逢星期三（公
peliharaan, boleh
mendapatkan maklumat
共假期休息），德教太和观乐龄
daripada:
服务中心，塔景路（Tah
 Persatuan CegahChing
Kekejaman Ke Atas
Haiwan (SPCA) di talian
Rd）第337座，免费）
6287-5355.
由《联合早报》和《联合晚报》
 Persatuan Kebajikan
Kucing dengan
联办，向年长者讲解过去一周的
menghantar e-mel
kepada
adoption@catwelfare.org

新闻。
亲带他去给医生看诊。
Kadangkala Cik Rogayah Os法比赛，并获得学生组的冠军， 外活动，在努力掌握书法一笔一
Ren Ci@Bukit Batok.
man, 83 tahun, kesunyian tatkala
– Foto-foto让他雀跃万分。
划精髓的同时，结交了不少志同
menetap 岂料，他首次参赛就捧了亚
di rumah rawatan Ren
ZAINAL YAHYA
Abdul Rahim, 30 tahun, berkata sesi
Ci@Bukit Batok.
军回家，让他备受鼓舞，也坚定
terapi haiwan, terutamanya dengan
他说：
“在学习书法的过程 道合的朋友。
Mujur baginya dan lagi 240 pengkucing, agak baru diperkenal di sini,
huni lain rumah rawatan yang terleberbanding Amerika Syarikat.
中，我领悟到‘天下无难事，只
谈到学书法时的趣事，陆楷
tak了把书法练好的决心。
di Bukit Batok Street 52 itu, kesu“Memandangkan hospital ini menyian yang dirasai lenyap tatkala
（10时－13时，新加坡管理学院
nekankan khidmat pemulihan, maka
陆楷俊的书法在过去七八年
怕有心人’‘只要功夫深，铁棒 俊记忆犹新，笑说有一次一边用
mendapat kunjungan ‘teman-teman’
antara manfaat yang kami cuba rangistimewa.
The Atrium，金文泰路，免费）
sang menerusi sesi ini ialah kemahi里频频受肯定，所获的大小奖项
磨成针’的道理。学习书法让我 左手拿着巧克力，一边以右手拿
Teman-teman yang dimaksudkan
ran motor pesakit.
ialah beberapa kucing peliharaan
聆听企业家的座谈会、分享会与
“Contohnya, hanya menerusi
不下50个。去年12月，他在学长 获得不少奖项和乐趣，这也使我 着毛笔写字，“写得入神时，我
yang dibawa sekumpulan sukarela- Ci@Bukit Batok, Encik Damien Ooi,
Tiada kriteria dikenakan bagi penpergerakan memegang, memeluk,
wan
dan pencinta haiwan comel itu. berkata terapi haiwan
讨论会。 membelai atau menyikat bulu kucmemberi man- ghuni yang ingin menjalaninya, ma- 尽然把毛笔当巧克力往嘴里放，
的鼓励下参加了由《联合早报》
更有耐性和自信。”
Kucing digunakan sebagai seba- faat kepada pesakit.
ing baik dari segi melatih pergerakan
ka mereka bebas memilih sekiranya
hagian
sesi terapi haiwan.
电话：62489095
bahagian atas tubuh.
Peluang berinteraksi antara
manu- ingin menyertai atau tidak.
举办的“字述一年”年度汉字书
陆楷俊也因为参加了书法课
吃了一口的墨汁！”
“Setiap kali dengar bunyi meow, sia dengan haiwan itu bertujuan
“Secara tidak langsung, sesi ini juRelawan LKP menghabiskan
meow, nenek rasa terhibur dan gem- merehat dan menyembuhkan.
ga menerapkan kemahiran sosial.
masa sehingga dua jam menemani
bira sekali. Ketika itu nenek tahu
Mereka dapat bergaul dengan kaki“Penghuni rumah kami menan- penghuni rumah tersebut dalam settangan hospital dan pesakit lain,” kaada ‘tetamu’ istimewa yang datang ti-nantikan lawatan haiwan itu setiap sesi.
tanya.
melawat kami semua.
iap bulan. Mereka benar-benar
Dalam
sebulan,
kumpulan
terseSelain itu, beliau yang juga penga“Biasanya nenek akan minta juru- menghargai persahabatan dan intersas Cats berkata pihaknya mempunrawat agar cepat-cepat hantar nenek aksi yang menceriakan kehidupan but membuat sehingga lima kunjungan ke tiga rumah rawatan dan pusat
yai sebanyak 33 kucing terapi setberjumpa dengan kucing-kucing itu. mereka di sini,” katanya.
khas golongan istimewa.
akat ini.
Bila nampak kucing, teringat zaman
Difahamkan bahawa sesi terapi
Menurutnya, rancangan jangka
Seorang sukarelawan, Cik Dharmuda masa tinggal di kampung.
haiwan menggunakan kucing di rupanjang
adalah mendapatkan lebih
“Ketika itu, nenek suka pelihara mah rawatan itu bermula ketika se- masari Haroun, 36 tahun, menjelasramai sukarelawan tampil menawardan bermain-main dengan kucing,” kumpulan sukarelawan Love Kuch- kan bahawa mereka menjalani sesi BAIK SEBAGAI TERAPI: Sedang hubungan dengan keluarga dan rakan dianggap
kan kucing mereka bagi tujuan terakata bekas penghuni kampung ka- ing Project (LKP) mengunjungi ru- kenal suai dulu supaya sukarelawan rumit, hubungan dengan haiwan peliharaan boleh mendedahkan apa yang difikir dan
pi.
wasan Telok Kurau itu, sambil men- mah rawatan Ren Ci di Moulmein pa- membiasakan diri dengan penghuni. dirasai tanpa rasa bimbang dinilai secara negatif.
“Tidak mudah mendapatkan kuc“Semua kucing juga akan diperikgacah-acah seekor kucing.
da Mei 2014.
ing terapi yang selesa dikelilingi
Kehadiran kucing sebagai terapi
Sesi terapi anjing turut dianjur- sa tahap kesihatannya dan diberi
Dianggarkan 1,135 pesakit sudah pertubuhan Terapi Bantuan Kucing manusia. Kami tahu tidak semua kucbuat penghuni rumah rawatan itu se- kan, namun diadakan di luar wad ba- vaksin bagi mengelakkan sebarang
memanfaatkan sesi-sesi terapi itu, Singapura (Cats) yang menawarkan ing begitu.
bulan sekali merupakan pengalaman gi menghormati penghuni Muslim, penyakit,” jelasnya.
“Namun, ada juga kucing yang
Pesakit di Hospital Ang Mo Kio – yang antara lain memberi peluang kucing bagi sesi terapi sedemikian.
yang sering dinantikan.
kata Encik Ooi.
tenang dan selesa dikelilingi manuEksekutif pengurusan sukarela- sia. Kucing sebeginilah yang sesuai
Antara lain, penghuni diberi peluSejauh ini, setiap sesi terapi hai- Thye Hua Kwan turut berpeluang kepada mereka membelai dan meny郑靖豫
报道
他说：“毫无疑问的，只有
蔡宜志取回便携存储器。
关。 hospital dijadikan kucing terapi,” tambahbulu kucing.
wan kesihatan bersekutu
ang
membelai kucing.
wan memberi manfaat kepada
ant- memanfaatkan sesi terapi serupa se- ikat
Pentadbir rumah rawatan Ren ara 15 dengan 50 penghuni.
jak April 2013.
Hospital itu bekerjasama dengan tersebut, Encik Mohamed Shahril nya.
peckgek@sph.com.sg

Discover the
Entreprenuer in You
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●壮男租床位嫌闷热
‘借’商场吃住近四年

演出

Terapi kucing penghapus duka

menjadi penghibur
hati di rumah rawatan
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今日文章五大排行

数码

年仅 14 岁的陆楷俊自小练得一

●后港组屋变杂货店
偷卖鸭血兔肉
●认识咳嗽系列⑦
七类食物暂别吃
（根据“联合早报网”昨晚6时
单日排行榜）

联系早报网
电邮：zblocal@sph.com.sg
传送照片：9720-1182
网站：www.zaobao.sg
面簿：facebook.com/lianhezaobao

电话：62550711／67332155

展览

赏心悦目艺术展
Berita Harian
（10时－22时，至2月20日，来福
对话
士购物中心1楼，免费）
Cat therapy
helps with depression
（11时－20时，至23日，视觉艺
来自中国的18位艺术家、书画家
术中心（Visual Arts Centre），槟
和工艺师公开表演、讲解和示范
Patients
in Ang Mo Kio – Thye Hua
榔路（Penang Rd）10号1楼2号
传统技艺等。
（多美歌地铁站B出口），免费）
展出两位本地知名残障艺术家庄
Kwan Hospital
have been benefiting
活 动消息可 寄交“今日触 点”
心珍与Gregory Burns的20余幅创
负 责 人 或传真 至6 3 19 - 8 12 1
作，希望让国人了解残障画家能
from cat或电邮：
therapy
since April 2013. The
zblocal@sph.com.sg
突破困境创作精彩的艺术。
Hospital has been working with the CATS
organisation
to offer cat therapy services
高庭昨天裁定商人谢其晋谋杀妻子
to 的前情夫罪名成立。法官指出，被
its
patients.
It has been estimated
告证词不可靠、不仅有多处矛盾，
还有令人难以置信的说法。
around 1,135 patients have benefited
from this therapy.
妻舅却供称，谢其晋找他帮忙搬

商人谋杀妻子前情夫罪名成立
法官择日下判

高庭昨天裁定一名商人谋杀
妻子的前情夫罪名成立，择日对
他判处终身监禁或死刑。
谢其晋（56岁，商人）三年
前引领警方去林厝港军营附近的
实弹军训区，找到头部受重创、
早已断气的蔡宜志（37岁）。蔡
宜志和谢其晋的妻子之前有婚外
情。
谢其晋否认杀害蔡宜志，把
矛头指向陌生男子“阿里”。
朱汉德法官去年经过七天的
审讯，昨天驳回谢其晋说法不连
贯的版本。

下有智慧
速读狮城

何惜薇

报道

hosb@sph.com.sg

我国支持“两国方案”
为解决以巴冲突途径

中东和平会议本月15日于法
国巴黎落幕，与会者再次认定制
定“两国方案”为解决以色列和
巴勒斯坦冲突唯一途径。
我国外交部昨天重申，支
持国际社会竭力促进“重启有
意义和直接的谈判，以达成
‘两国方案’，让以巴和平与
安全地共处”。
外交部文告也说：“新加坡
也敦促各方不采取可改变现状的
单方面行动，从而达成公正、持
久和全面的解决方案，符合以巴
和中东整体的长远利益。”
据报道，约70国的代表15
日出席了这次的会议。
以巴冲突持续胶着了半个
多世纪，涉及两个民族、宗
参加《联合早报》举办的“字述一年”年度汉字书法
教、文化及领土等多方面根深
组的冠军。（梁伟康摄）
蒂固的矛盾。多年来，国际社
得学生组的冠军， 外活动，在努力掌握书法一笔一
会为解决以巴纷争做出巨大努
。
划精髓的同时，结交了不少志同
力，寻求透过谈判途径解决问
学习书法的过程 道合的朋友。
题，推动中东和平进程。
‘天下无难事，只
谈到学书法时的趣事，陆楷
只要功夫深，铁棒 俊记忆犹新，笑说有一次一边用
职总平价超市明天起
理。学习书法让我 左手拿着巧克力，一边以右手拿
延长营业时间
和乐趣，这也使我 着毛笔写字，“写得入神时，我
农历新年将至，全国职工
信。”
尽然把毛笔当巧克力往嘴里放，
总会旗下50多间平价超市明天
因为参加了书法课 吃了一口的墨汁！”
起延长营业时间，全岛83间平
价超市也会在小年夜（1月26
日）当天24小时营业，方便国
人办年货。
正月初一和初二（1月28和
29日）公定假日期间，25间职
总平价超市照常营业。所有职
总平价超市将在农历初三（1月
30日）恢复正常营业。
职总平价网购服务也会从
毫无疑问的，只有 除夕（1月27日）傍晚6时至正
蔡宜志取回便携存储器。
杀害蔡宜志的动机 月初一暂停递送服务，初二恢
他承认，他在2013年12月28
日晚上与印度尼西亚籍前员工贾
复服务。
判2013年12月28日 米科（34岁）和阿里，在蔡厝港
欲知各个超市的营业时
宜志罪名成立，面 间，公众可登录平价超市网站
的一座停车场把蔡宜志掳进客货
死刑。法官择日判 www.fairprice.com.sg查询。
车里。阿里与贾米科之后把蔡宜
志移到另一辆车，他不知道蔡宜
12年底瞧见妻子的 志之后发生什么事。
暧昧短信，怀疑她
然而，他给警方的口供却是
和同事蔡宜志有婚 不同的版本。
把两人交欢一幕拍
谢其晋在一份口供中承认，
携存储器（thumb 他和贾米科在货车里攻击蔡宜志
时，贾米科交了一把锤子给他，
谢其晋称他三番五 他用锤子敲蔡宜志的脸和大腿。
讨该便携存储器， 他在另两份口供中，却否认掳走
是聘请阿里帮他向 蔡宜志，也撇清与蔡宜志被杀有

谢其晋一人有杀害蔡宜志的动机
和意图。”
谢其晋被判2013年12月28日
至29日谋杀蔡宜志罪名成立，面
对终身监禁或死刑。法官择日判
刑。
谢其晋2012年底瞧见妻子的
手机里有一则暧昧短信，怀疑她
出轨。她承认和同事蔡宜志有婚
外情，后者还把两人交欢一幕拍
下来，存在便携存储器（thumb
drive）里。
审讯中，谢其晋称他三番五
次向蔡宜志索讨该便携存储器，
但不遂。他于是聘请阿里帮他向

他承认，他在2013年12月28
不过，无论是谢其晋的证词
日晚上与印度尼西亚籍前员工贾 或口供，都与多名证人的说法有
米科（34岁）和阿里，在蔡厝港 出入。贾米科和事发时帮忙驾货
的一座停车场把蔡宜志掳进客货 车的蔡良益（67岁）个别给警方
车里。阿里与贾米科之后把蔡宜 口供，他们完全没提到有阿里这
志移到另一辆车，他不知道蔡宜 个人。
志之后发生什么事。
贾米科未落网，但他在命案
然而，他给警方的口供却是 发生两个月后，在印尼民丹岛录
不同的版本。
口供时称，谢其晋把蔡宜志推
谢其晋在一份口供中承认， 入货车，他则按照之前说好的计
他和贾米科在货车里攻击蔡宜志 划，把蔡宜志电晕。谢其晋不断
时，贾米科交了一把锤子给他， 揍蔡宜志的脸，然后捧起后者的
他用锤子敲蔡宜志的脸和大腿。 2017年1月18日
头使劲地撞车底。
星期三
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他在另两份口供中，却否认掳走
谢其晋事发后凌晨3时拨电找
蔡宜志，也撇清与蔡宜志被杀有 妻舅，他称是要询问鸟的价钱。

新加坡
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新加坡保健优质服务奖
陈劲禾

演出

●壮男租床位嫌闷热
九人获超级巨星奖
‘借’商场吃住近四年
●商人谋杀妻情夫罪成
展期判刑

报道

jinhet@sph.com.sg

新加坡人口老化，医药保健
牛车水农历新年综艺晚会
与年长者护理服务的需求随之增
（20时－22时30分，至27日，牛
加，在人手短缺的情况下，卫生
车水广场，免费）
部政务部长徐芳达说，有必要利
本地艺人及中国剧团呈献中华文
用科技简化繁琐的工作流程，让
化表演、新春歌曲和歌舞音乐等
医护人员专心照顾病人。
表演。
他昨日在“新加坡保健优质
网址：chinatownfestivals.sg
服务奖”颁奖典礼上致词时说：
“通过自动化、重新设计护理模
式，以及简化工作流程，以善用
讲座
有限的人力资源，我们的医药保
健人员就可以更专心照顾病人、
陪你看报纸
为更多病人服务。”
（10时－11时，每逢星期三（公
该奖由新加坡保健服务集团
共假期休息），德教太和观乐龄
杜克－国大学术医疗中心颁发，
服务中心，塔景路（Tah Ching
旨在肯定为病人提供优质服务的
Rd）第337座，免费）
医护人员。
由《联合早报》和《联合晚报》
共有3585名医护人员获奖，
联办，向年长者讲解过去一周的
涵盖26所公共与私人医药保健机
构。其中，有九人获得荣誉最高
新闻。
的“超级巨星奖”。
根据主办当局的资料，超级
Discover
the
巨星奖是颁发给为病人或同事额
Entreprenuer in You
外付出的医护人员。得奖条件包
（10时－13时，新加坡管理学院
括获得多少称赞与服务奖，以及
The Atrium，金文泰路，免费）
在提升服务素质与提供护理时所
聆听企业家的座谈会、分享会与
作出的团队贡献。
讨论会。
受访得奖者说，要成为优秀
电话：62489095
的医护人员，除了要精通专业之
外，更讲究沟通能力与同理心。

今日文章五大排行

●碧山金山岭咖啡店
吊销营业执照一天

新年掌握新技能
技能创前程培训补助金推
出一年了，你用了吗？55
个领域的1万7000多个课程
要怎么选？
http://bit.ly/zb_scredit
扫描QR码
了解如何选择
适合自己的课程

展览

●后港组屋变杂货店
偷卖鸭血兔肉
●认识咳嗽系列⑦
七类食物暂别吃
（根据“联合早报网”昨晚6时
单日排行榜）

联系早报网
电邮：zblocal@sph.com.sg
传送照片：9720-1182
网站：www.zaobao.sg
面簿：facebook.com/lianhezaobao

电话：62550711／67332155

赏心悦目艺术展

（10时－22时，至2月20日，来福
对话
士购物中心1楼，免费）
（11时－20时，至23日，视觉艺
来自中国的18位艺术家、书画家
术中心（Visual Arts Centre），槟
和工艺师公开表演、讲解和示范
榔路（Penang Rd）10号1楼2号
传统技艺等。
（多美歌地铁站B出口），免费）
展出两位本地知名残障艺术家庄
活 动消息可 寄交“今日触 点”
心珍与Gregory Burns的20余幅创
负 责 人 或传真 至6 3 19 - 8 12 1
作，希望让国人了解残障画家能
新加坡国立癌症中心临床护士陈美琳（左）与宏茂桥太和观医院物理治
或电邮：zblocal@sph.com.sg
突破困境创作精彩的艺术。
疗师胡惠真分别获得护士与长期护理综合保健医疗人员组别的超级巨星
奖。（周国威摄）

妻子前情夫罪名成立

48

陈美琳：关心病人生活情况

新加坡国立癌症中心临床护
士陈美琳（41岁）获得护士组别
的超级巨星奖。除了履行本身的
职责之外，她在工作以外也不忘
关心病人的生活情况。
她曾经照顾过一名患有乳癌
关。
的单亲妈妈。当她发现这位病人
不过，无论是谢其晋的证词
原来就在她家附近摆摊兜售首饰
或口供，都与多名证人的说法有
时，她便经常去探望她。
出入。贾米科和事发时帮忙驾货
不幸地，这位病人最终无法
车的蔡良益（67岁）个别给警方
战胜病魔与世长辞，但过去五年
口供，他们完全没提到有阿里这
多来，陈美琳仍然与她的两个儿
个人。
贾米科未落网，但他在命案
发生两个月后，在印尼民丹岛录
口供时称，谢其晋把蔡宜志推
入货车，他则按照之前说好的计
划，把蔡宜志电晕。谢其晋不断
揍蔡宜志的脸，然后捧起后者的
头使劲地撞车底。
谢其晋事发后凌晨3时拨电找
妻舅，他称是要询问鸟的价钱。

准文凭之后到理工学院修读物理
子保持联络，关心他们的生活。
因工作而经常面对生离死别 治疗课程而延迟上大学，并且认
高庭昨天裁定商人谢其晋谋杀妻子
的陈美琳受访时说：“既然上帝 为这个职业相当辛苦。
的前情夫罪名成立。法官指出，被
然而，胡惠真还是坚持自己
给了我机会参与病人的人生，那
告证词不可靠、不仅有多处矛盾，
的抱负，毕业后加入宏茂桥太和
我想成为他们的动力，帮助他们
还有令人难以置信的说法。
观医院，帮助年长者做复健。
思考该如何有意义地度过余生，
她说：“年长者生病时难免
无论他们还剩下多少时间。”
会有小脾气，所以我们需要花大
胡惠真：
与年长病患建立感情 量的时间和他们建立感情。
妻舅却供称，谢其晋找他帮忙搬
尸体，但他拒绝。
获得长期护理综合保健医疗
“有时，我们可能想要快点
朱汉德法官指出，谢其晋的 做完，快点回家，但这个想法不
人员组别超级巨星奖的物理治疗
证词不可靠、不仅有多处矛盾， 太正确。我们要花点时间深入了
师胡惠真（27岁）则说，从事这
还 有 令 人 难 以 置 信 的 说 法 。 此 解他们需要什么，再慢慢告诉他
个行业曾经遭到母亲反对。
外，完全没有证据让他相信阿里
母亲认为她不该在考取A水 们该如何达到目标。”
的存在。
他说：“谢其晋和贾米科企
图攻击蔡宜志，也真的有攻击
他。那是他们共同的意图。重要
的一击是谁出手不重要，虽然在
我看来是谢其晋。他是有干案动
机及对蔡宜志有仇恨的人。”
蔡良益共谋掳拐蔡宜志和蓄
意严重伤害他，被判入狱五年。 谢其晋被判谋杀妻子的前情夫罪名
成立。（档案照片）
（部分人名译音）

ANG MO KIO - THYE HUA KWAN HOSPITAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

坡保健优质服务奖
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2017年1月18日

九人获超级巨星奖

最新一期逗号：

年轻人当钟点清洁工

尸体，但他拒绝。
朱汉德法官指出，谢其晋的
证词不可靠、不仅有多处矛盾，
还有令人难以置信的说法。此
外，完全没有证据让他相信阿里
的存在。
他说：“谢其晋和贾米科企
图攻击蔡宜志，也真的有攻击
他。那是他们共同的意图。重要
的一击是谁出手不重要，虽然在
我看来是谢其晋。他是有干案动
机及对蔡宜志有仇恨的人。”
蔡良益共谋掳拐蔡宜志和蓄
意严重伤害他，被判入狱五年。
（部分人名译音）

联和早报
新加坡保健优质服务奖,
谢其晋被判谋杀妻子的前情夫罪名
成立。
九人获超级巨星奖
Ms Aw Hui Zhen, winner in the
最新一期逗号：
Intermediate and Long-Term Care
年轻人当钟点清洁工
每小时17元工资，你愿意兼职当钟
(ILTC), Singapore Health Quality Service
点清洁工吗？
《联合早报》日前报道，本地有越
Superstar Awards 2017, was featured
来越多年轻人通过手机应用或网上配对
服务寻找有意聘用清洁服务的雇主，本
in Lianhe Zaobao, which was published
期《逗号》“话题”请学生针对当清洁
工的课题发表看法，也邀请资深教育工
on January 18, 2017. The article shared
作者配合新闻出题，加强学生的阅读理
解及口语表达能力。有关参考答案可上
her perseverance in becoming a
逗号网查阅。
没有文凭就等于事业没有出路？这
physiotherapist and the importance of
一期的“达人驾到”专访本地服装品牌
Yacht 21的创办人何芷慧。
十多年前毅然从南洋理工大学退
building up trust and understanding the
学，从一个小摊位做起，到如今拥有五
家店面和百货专柜，何芷慧与学生分享
needs of the senior patients in working
自己是如何靠着热忱与冲劲在时尚界闯
出一片天地。
towards their rehabilitation goals.
韩国新生代演员高庚杓凭借《请
（档案照片）

回答1988》和《嫉妒的化身》打响知名
度，戏里他是爱装酷的“高富帅”，戏
外他会是什么样的个性，会如何追求喜
欢的女生呢？
全岛 buzz 售报亭每周三售卖《逗号》。每份《逗号》（附带
早报）售价2元。欲知 buzz 售报亭地址，可上网 www.zbCOMMA.
sg 查询。《逗号》欢迎学校订阅，有意者可拨打 63192166／
63193082 或电邮 jchang@sph.com.sg 询问。

Singapore Today 狮城有约,
Ageing with You
Ms Jocelyn Ng, Nurse Educator and
Ms Aw Hui Zhen, Physiotherapist were
featured on “老。友伴 Ageing With You”
in Channel 8 news segment Singapore
Today 狮城有约 last year. The four-part
series highlighted the care facilities
and professional services available to
help Singaporeans age well at home.

Media Coverage

Ahli
terapi
gembira
lihat
warga tua
mampu
berdikari
APABILA beliau melihat warga tua di
bawah jagaannya mampu berdikari dan
melakukan sendiri tugas harian mereka,
perasaan gembiranya tidak terkira.
Ini merupakan antara dorongan bagi
Cik Siti Zubaidah Yusoff, 31 tahun, meneruskan tugasnya sebagai ahli terapi pekerjaan di Hospital Ang Mo Kio Thye Hua
Kwan (AMKTHKH) yang memberi tumpuan kepada penjagaan rehabilitatif atau
pemulihan penyakit.
Cik Siti Zubaidah berkata bahawa tugasnya tidak pernah membosankan.

“Tugas saya berbeza setiap hari. Ada
kala saya membantu pesakit angin ahmar
bergerak seperti biasa dan pada masa yang
lain pula mungkin saya keluar bersama pesakit untuk membantunya menyesuaikan
diri dengan keadaan di luar,” katanya.
Antara lain, beliau juga melatih dan
membiasakan pesakitnya melakukan kerja
rumah harian seperti membasuh dan menggantung baju serta melatih mereka menggunakan kerusi roda.
KUNJUNG PESAKIT
Beliau juga membuat kunjungan ke ru-

BANTU WARGA
TUA: Cik Siti
Zubaidah (kiri)
turut melatih
warga tua di
bawah jagaannya
di Hospital Ang
Mo Kio Thye Hua
Kwan buat kerja
rumah seperti
membasuh,
gantung baju dan
guna kerusi roda.

mah pesakit yang telah keluar dari hospital
untuk memantau keadaan mereka.
Cik Siti Zubaidah menekankan pentingnya meningkatkan mutu penjagaan warga
tua di Singapura, terutama dengan jumlah
warga tua yang semakin meningkat.
“Singapura mempunyai penduduk
yang semakin tua dan mereka mempunyai
banyak keperluan. Justeru, kita harus cuba
memikirkan tentang cara kreatif menawarkan khidmat kepada warga tua yang boleh
memanfaatkan mereka,” katanya.
Baru-baru ini Cik Siti Zubaidah telah
menamatkan pengajian peringkat Sarjana

dalam bidang Terapi Pekerjaan Lanjutan
di Universiti La Trobe di Melbourne, Australia, dengan biasiswa yang dianugerahkan oleh Agensi Penjagaan Bersepadu
(AIC) dengan sokongan AMKTHKH.
MENYOKONG KEPERLUAN
MASYARAKAT KIAN MENUA
Beliau kini memimpin Jabatan Terapi
Pekerjaan di AMTHKH dan ingin menumpukan usahanya kepada membangunkan
perkhidmatan baru yang menyokong keperluan masyarakat Singapura yang semakin menua.

“Perkhidmatan bagi warga tua seharusnya berubah mengikut peredaran masa kerana masyarakat juga akan terus berubah.
“Pada masa akan datang kita mungkin
berhadapan dengan warga tua yang tahu
menggunakan teknologi. Maka itu, perkhidmatan terapi juga seharusnya disesuaikan. Kita mesti tahu memadankan keperluan dan juga khidmat,” kata Cik Siti Zubaidah.
Menurut beliau lagi Singapura memerlukan lebih ramai ahli terapi pekerjaan berdasarkan keperluan masyarakatnya yang
semakin menua.

Berita Harian
Occupational Therapist delighted to help elderly patients become independent
Our Principal Occupational Therapist, Ms Siti Zubaidah Yusoff, was also featured by Berita Harian on
October 19, 2016 in an article, titled “Occupational Therapist delighted to help elderly patients become
independent”. The feature focused on the roles of an occupational therapist in helping patients regain
a level of independence in carrying out their activities of daily living (ADLs).

Kemudahan baru bagi pesakit kencing manis
di Ang Mo Kio

PERKHIDMATAN KESIHATAN BERPATUTAN: Dr Koh Poh Koon (dua dari kanan) melihat salah satu perkhidmatan yang disediakan di Pusat Kesihatan Masyarakat (CHC) AMK-THKH
iaitu fotografi retina untuk kencing manis. – Foto HOSPITALTHYE HUA KWAN

PENDUDUK Ang Mo Kio dan kawasan berhampiran yang menghidap kencing manis kini mempunyai kemudahan baru bagi menjalani pemeriksaan
supaya kerumitan lanjut akibat penyakit itu dapat dielak.
Pusat Kesihatan Masyarakat (CHC) Hospital Ang
Mo Kio, Thye Hua Kwan (AMK- THKH), telah dilancarkan secara rasmi oleh Menteri Negara (Perdagangan dan Perusahaan merangkap Pembangunan
Negara), Dr Koh Poh Koon, semalam.
Ini disusuli oleh pelan induk Healthcare 2020 Kementerian Kesihatan (MOH) bagi mengembangkan

kapasiti penjagaan kesihatan negara yang memenuhi keperluan penduduk yang semakin menua.
Berdasarkan rujukan daripada klinik doktor rawatan umum (GP), CHC menyediakan perkhidmatan sokongan bagi membantu GP menjaga pesakit
yang dalam keadaan kronik secara lebih menyeluruh.
Perkhidmatan yang ditawarkan di CHC itu termasuk pemeriksaan mata dan kaki bagi pesakit kencing
manis, kaunseling oleh jururawat dan nasihat pemakanan berkaitan dengan penyakit itu.
CHC akan meredakan permintaan bagi perkhidmatan yang mempunyai tarikh janji temu selain

membolehkan hasil pemeriksaan lebih pantas dihantar kepada GP mereka bagi rawatan susulan.
Skim bantuan kewangan yang dapat digunakan
adalah Skim Bantuan Kesihatan Masyarakat
(CHAS) dan Pakej Generasi Perintis (PG).
Dr Koh berkata: “CHC terletak di tengah-tengah
masyarakat. Faktor mudah didatangi dan kemudahan merupakan faktor penting apatah lagi dengan
penduduk yang semakin tua masalah pergerakan
menjadi satu isu.
“Menjadi titik permulaan yang baik bagi GP
menyedari akan adanya pusat ini dan sedia menghantar pesakit mereka ke sini.”

Berita Harian
New Facility for Diabetic Patients in
Ang Mo Kio
The opening of our Community Health Centre
(CHC) was featured in Berita Harian and was
published on September 22, 2016. Titled “New
Facility for Diabetic Patients in Ang Mo Kio”, the
article highlighted the services offered at AMKTHKH CHC. Dr Koh Poh Koon, Senior Minister of
State from the Ministry of National Development
& Ministry of Trade and Industry and MP for
Ang Mo Kio GRC, who officiated at the Opening,
commented on its accessibility and shared that
the services provided addresses the needs of
the ageing population in the community.
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Ang Mo Kio –Thye Hua Kwan Hospital (the
Hospital), is incorporated in Singapore on
22 February 2002 under the Companies
Act, Chapter 50 (Registration Number:
200201385C).
The Hospital is also a Charity registered
under the Charities Act, Chapter 37
(Charity Registration Number: 01589),
and an approved institution of a Public
Character under the Singapore Income
Tax Act, Chapter 134.
The Hospital has its principal place of
registered office at 1 North Bridge Road,
#03-33, High Street Centre, Singapore
179094.
Independent Auditor: KPMG LLP
Bankers: OCBC, DBS, UOB

ANG MO KIO - THYE HUA KWAN HOSPITAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

51

Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
(A Company limited by guarantee
and not having a share capital)
Registration Number : 200201385C
(Registered under the Charities Act, Chapter 37)

Annual Report
Year ended 31 March 2017
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KPMG LLP (Registration No. T08LL1267L), an accounting
limited liability partnership registered in Singapore under the
Limited Liability Partnership Act (Chapter 163A) and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms
affiliated with KPMG International, Cooperative (“KPMG
International”) a Swiss entity.

Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
Directors’ statement
Year ended 31 March 2017

Directors’ statement
We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.
In our opinion:
(a) the financial statements set out on pages FS1 to FS30 are drawn up so as to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2017 and the financial
performance and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Charities Act,
Chapter 37, and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards; and
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will
be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements
for issue.

Directors
The directors in office at the date of this statement are as follows:
Lee Kim Siang
Chew Heng Ching
Chang Meng Teng
Robert Tock Peng Cheong
Ong Ser Huan
Jayaram Lingamaicker
Zulkifli Bin Baharudin
Philip Choo
Cheah Sheau Lan
Goh Geok Cheong
Chew Hai Chwee
Tan Tiong Har
John Teo Woon Keng

(Resigned on 18 June 2017)

(Appointed on 16 June 2016)
(Appointed on 16 June 2016)
(Appointed on 13 September 2016)

Directors’ interests
As the Company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital, no director who held office at
the end of the financial year had interests in the capital of the Company either at the beginning
of the financial year, or date of appointment if later, or at the end of the financial year.
According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act), no director who held office at the end of the financial
year (including those held by their spouses and infant children) had interests in shares or
debentures of related corporations, either at the beginning of the year, or date of appointment if
later, or at the end of the financial year.
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Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
Directors’ statement
Year ended 31 March 2017

Neither at the end of, nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Conflicts of interests
Conflicts of interests arise whenever the personal or professional interests of board members,
staff or volunteers interfere with the performance of their official duties or with their decisionmaking on matters related to the Company. Conflict of interest situations include those actual,
potential or perceived.

Policy and procedures
(a) The Conflict of Interest policy should be read and understood by all board members, staff
and/or volunteers upon the commencement of their term of office, employment, and/or
volunteer service. Declarations of interests are required to be submitted upon assuming
office, commencement of work or commencement of volunteer service. Any subsequent
changes in personal or professional interests are to be declared.
(b) As and when actual conflicts occur, the board member, staff and/or volunteer shall make a
declaration of his/her interest for that specific instance in writing and excuse himself/
herself from decision making.
(c) Transactions with parties with whom a conflicting interest exists may be permitted only if
all of the following are observed:
(i)
(ii)

The conflicting interest is to be fully disclosed;
The person with the conflict of interest is to abstain from the discussion, voting and
approval of such a transaction;
(iii) Competitive bids or comparable valuations are to be obtained; and
(iv) The board of directors has determined that the transaction is in the best interest of
the Company although there may be a conflict of interest.

(d) The board of directors (excluding board members with conflicts of interests) shall
determine whether a conflict exists and in the case of an existing conflict, whether the
contemplated transaction may be authorised as just, fair and reasonable to the Company.
The decision of the remaining board members on these matters shall rest in their sole
discretion, and their concern must be the welfare of the Company and the advancement of
its purpose.
(e) Any disclosure of interest made by board members, staff or volunteers where they may be
involved in potentially conflicting situations, must be recorded, filed and updated
appropriately by all specified parties.
(f)

54

As board members hold the ultimate responsibility and are always accountable to the
public, they should uphold and maintain a standard of conduct such as the avoidance of
conflict of interest to fulfil public trust responsibilities. Therefore, board members must
lead by example with an attitude and act of personal integrity.
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Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
Directors’ statement
Year ended 31 March 2017

Share options
The Company is limited by guarantee and has no issued share capital.

Auditors
The auditors, KPMG LLP, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Lee Kim Siang
Director

Chang Meng Teng
Director
28 June 2017
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KPMG LLP
16 Raffles Quay #22-00
Hong Leong Building
Singapore 048581

Telephone
Fax
Internet

+65 6213 3388
+65 6225 0984
www.kpmg.com.sg

Independent auditors’ report
Members of the Company
Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd (‘the
Company’), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the
statements of financial activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages
FS1 to FS30.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (‘the Act’), the Singapore Charities Act,
Chapter 37 (‘the Charities Act’) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (‘FRSs’) so as
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2017 and of
the financial performance and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (‘SSAs’). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (‘ACRA Code’) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other information
Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other
information is defined as all information in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.
We have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditors’ report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditors’ report
Year ended 31 March 2017

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Charities Act and FRSs, and for devising
and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls.

5

57

Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
Independent auditors’ report
Year ended 31 March 2017

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention to cause us to believe that:
(a) the use of donation moneys was not in accordance with the objectives of the Company as
required under Regulation 16 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character)
Regulations; and
(b) the Company has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 (fund-raising
expenses) of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations.

KPMG LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
28 June 2017
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Statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2017
Note

2017
$

2016
$

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments

4
5
6

Current assets
Investments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

897,218
118,039
7,019,216
8,034,473

800,769
102,031

902,800

6
7
8
9

1,892,022
284,438
16,250,441
36,661,493
55,088,394
63,122,867


292,136
16,728,160
31,277,661
48,297,957
49,200,757

10

4,834,223
48,318,641
(26,579)
53,126,285

2,548,704
36,141,593

38,690,297

7,552,580
1,348,612
1,095,390
9,996,582

7,732,538
1,682,532
1,095,390
10,510,460

63,122,867

49,200,757

400

400

Total assets
Funds
Restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Fair value reserve
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred government grants
Provision for unused government grants to be returned
Total funds and liabilities
Members Guarantee
4 members (2016: 4) of $100 each

11
12
13
14

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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financial activities
activities
Statement
Year ended
ended 31
31 March
March 2017
2017
Year

AngMo
MoKio
Kio--Thye
ThyeHua
HuaKwan
KwanHospital
HospitalLtd
Ltd
Ang
Financialstatements
statements
Financial
Yearended
ended31
31March
March2017
2017
Year






(74,481)
(74,481)

(93,660)
(93,660)
(93,660)
(93,660)

19,179
19,179















(26,579)
(26,579)
14,435,988
14,435,988

14,462,567
14,462,567

(99,867)
(99,867)
(43,401,939)
(43,401,939)
(43,501,806)
(43,501,806)

1,042,725
1,042,725
307,709
307,709
56,613,939
56,613,939
57,964,373
57,964,373

---------------------------------------------- 2017
2017-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Accumulated
FairValue
Value
Patient
Accumulated
Fair
Patient
Fund
Reserve
WelfareFund
Fund Sinking
SinkingFund
Fund
Total
Fund
Reserve
Welfare
Total
(unrestricted) (unrestricted)
(unrestricted)
(restricted)
(restricted)
Funds
(unrestricted)
(restricted)
(restricted)
Funds
$$
$$
$$
$$
$$
1,023,546
1,023,546
307,709
307,709
56,613,939
56,613,939
57,945,194
57,945,194







Note
Note

(99,867)
(99,867)
(43,308,279)
(43,308,279)
(43,408,146)
(43,408,146)



(74,481)
(74,481)

38,690,297
38,690,297

53,126,285
53,126,285

19,179
19,179

15
15
16
16
17
17

14,537,048
14,537,048

(26,579)
(26,579)
(26,579)
(26,579)

2,278,000
2,278,000
1,360,000
1,360,000
3,638,000
3,638,000




18
18
19
19



270,704
270,704
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,196,223
1,196,223

Incomingresources:
resources:
Incoming
Incomingresources
resources from
fromgenerated
generated funds:
funds:
Incoming
Voluntaryincome
income
-- Voluntary
Investmentand
and other
other income
income
-- Investment
Incomingresources
resources from
fromcharitable
charitableactivities
activities
Incoming
Totalincoming
incomingresources
resources
Total

Net incoming
incomingresources/(resources
resources/(resourcesexpended)
expended) for
forthe
theyear
year
Net

14,537,048
14,537,048



(26,579)
(26,579)



Othercomprehensive
comprehensiveincome:
income:
Other
Netchange
changein
infair
fairvalue
valueof
offinancial
financialassets
assetsavailable-for-sale
available-for-sale
Net
Totalcomprehensive
comprehensiveincome
income for
forthe
theyear
year
Total

36,141,593
36,141,593
(2,360,000)
(2,360,000)
48,318,641
48,318,641

Resourcesexpended:
expended:
Resources
Costsof
ofgenerating
generating funds:
funds:
Costs
Voluntaryincome
income
-- Voluntary
Charitableactivities
activities
Charitable
Totalresources
resourcesexpended
expended
Total

Totalfunds
fundsbrought
broughtforward
forward
Total
Transfer
Transfer
Totalfunds
fundscarried
carriedforward
forward
Total

The Company
Company has
has elected
elected to
to present
present the
the statement
statement of
of comprehensive
comprehensive income
income based
based on
on the
the presentation
presentation format
format of
of aa statement
statement of
of financial
financial activities
activities
The
under the
the Charities
Charities Accounting
Accounting Standard.
Standard.
under

Theaccompanying
accompanying notes
notes form
forman
anintegral
integralpart
partof
ofthese
thesefinancial
financialstatements.
statements.
The

FS2
FS2
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906,316
144,260
53,837,602
54,888,178


(83,266)
(83,266)

29,358


29,358












25,648,776

38,690,297

13,041,521

(196,032)
(41,679,983)
(41,876,015)

935,674
144,260
53,837,602
54,917,536

-------------------------------------- 2016 -------------------------------------Accumulated
Patient
Fund
Welfare Fund
Sinking Fund
Total
(unrestricted)
(restricted)
(restricted)
Funds
$
$
$
$
15
16
17

(196,032)
(41,596,717)
(41,792,749)

(53,908)

1,078,000
1,200,000
2,278,000

Note

18
19

13,095,429

324,612

270,704

Incoming resources:
Incoming resources from generated funds:
- Voluntary income
- Investment and other income
Incoming resources from charitable activities
Total incoming resources

Net incoming resources/(resources expended) for the year,
representing total comprehensive income for the year

24,246,164
(1,200,000)
36,141,593

Resources expended:
Costs of generating funds:
- Voluntary income
Charitable activities
Total resources expended

Total funds brought forward
Transfer
Total funds carried forward

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FS3

61

Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 March 2017
Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net incoming resources for the year
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Net change in fair value of financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income
Impairment loss on receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

2016
$

14,462,567

13,041,521

5
4
16

57,110
234,009
(188,899)

16
16
19
19

(90,267)
(28,543)
52,961
1,174
14,500,112



163,603
5,782
13,320,540

7,698
7,512,040
(2,827,568)
(333,920)
18,858,362

(40,480)
(5,086,381)
2,179,738
1,131,382
11,504,799

(8,847,550)
204,996
(13,480,383)
(73,118)


136,941
(671,882)
(112,518)

8,689,394
28,543
3,588
(13,474,530)

361,137

1,550
(284,772)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Deferred government grants
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investments
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment(i)
Purchase of intangible assets
Government grants received for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets(ii)
Dividend received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

2017
$

9

5,383,832
31,277,661
36,661,493

5,466
248,428
(144,260)

11,220,027
20,057,634
31,277,661

Notes
(i)
Out of the purchases of property, plant and equipment totalling $16,127,993 for the year,
purchases amounting to $13,480,383 have been paid as at year end. The balance of $2,647,610
has been recorded as accrued expenses on the balance sheet.
Total Government grants for purchase of property, plant and equipment for the year
amounted to $15,792,773. The amount of $8,689,394 were received during the year with the
balance of $7,103,379 being recorded as Government grants receivable on the balance sheet,
and the amount have been received in full subsequent to the year end.
(ii)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017.

1

Domicile and activities
Ang Mo Kio - Thye Hua Kwan Hospital Ltd (the Company) is incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore as a company limited by guarantee and has its principal place of business at 17 Ang
Mo Kio Avenue 9, Singapore 569766.
The Company was registered as a charity under the Charities Act, Chapter 37 on 27 March
2002. The Company is an approved institution of a public character in accordance with Section
37 of the Income Tax Act.
The principal activities of the Company are those relating to the carrying on of the business of
hospital for the rehabilitation of sub-acute patients. The Company is a not-for-profit entity
whose mission is:
•

To serve and to reach out to our patients, their families and the community, regardless of
race, colour, creed, language, culture and religion.

•

To rehabilitate and heal with commitment and professionalism in an environment of
continuous learning and growth.

The Company was initially established as Ang Mo Kio Community Hospital under the auspices
of the SingHealth group to serve increasing convalescent and rehabilitative needs in Singapore.
In 2002, with the change in the role of community hospitals within the healthcare structure, the
Company was divested from the SingHealth group.
The Company was assumed under the Thye Hua Kwan Moral Society and re-named as Ang Mo
Kio – Thye Hua Kwan Hospital with the same shared vision of serving patients needing
continual convalescent and rehabilitation care.
The Company provides a full spectrum of continuous rehabilitation and stepdown services for
patients and their families in sync with its vision and mission.

2

Basis of preparation

2.1

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS).
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2.2

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except as otherwise
described in the notes below.

2.3

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the Company’s
functional currency.

2.4

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in
Note 8 - measurement of impairment loss on trade receivables.
Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3:

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement (with Level 3 being the lowest).
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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2.5

Changes in accounting policies
In the current financial year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised FRSs and
Interpretations of FRSs (“INT FRSs”) that are relevant for its operations and effective per
annual period, beginning on 1 April 2016. The adoption of the new and revised FRSs and INT
FRSs did not have any significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

3

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

3.1

Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets
The Company initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and reward of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for
trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair
value through profit or loss if the Company manages such investments and makes purchase and
sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Company’s documented risk
management or investment strategy. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in the
statement of financial activities as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, and changes therein, which takes into account any dividend income,
are recognised in the statement of financial activities.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss comprise equity fund managed by
fund manager that otherwise would have been classified as available for sale.
Held-to-maturity financial assets
If the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then such
financial assets are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Held-to-maturity financial assets comprise debt securities.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits with maturities of
three months or less from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term
commitments.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the above categories of financial assets.
Available-for-sale financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value
and changes therein, are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair
value reserve in the statement of financial activities. When an investment is derecognised, the
gain or loss accumulated in fair value reserve is reclassified to surplus or deficit.
Available-for-sale financial assets comprise investment funds.
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are
recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities
category.
Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. These financial liabilities
comprise trade and other payables.

3.2

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost is stated net of related government grants (Note 3.7).
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the cost of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and is
recognised net within the statement of financial activities.
Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
that part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of financial activities as incurred.
Low value assets costing less than $1,000 individually are written off in the period of outlay.
Donated property, plant and equipment received costing less than $1,000 is written off in the
period of receipt. The corresponding donation income is recognised in the statement of financial
activities in the period of receipt. Donated property, plant and equipment received costing more
than $1,000 are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives so as to match the related
amortisation of the deferred income (see note 3.9(vi)).
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Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.
Depreciation is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial activities on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment.
Depreciation is recognised from the date that the property, plant and equipment are installed and
are ready for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:
Medical and hospital equipment
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings

5 to 10 years
3 years
5 years
8 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at each reporting date.
Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost. Expenditure relating to construction work-inprogress are capitalised when incurred. The assets are not depreciated until the construction is
completed and are ready for use.

3.3

Intangible assets
Computer software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is accounted for as an
intangible asset and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost is stated net of related government grants (Note 3.7).
Amortisation is calculated based on the cost of the asset, less its residual value.
Amortisation of computer software is recognised in the statement of financial activities on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 years.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at each reporting date.

3.4

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Allowance is made
where necessary for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories.
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3.5

Impairment
Non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event(s) has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in
the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Company, economic conditions that correlate
with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.
Loans and receivables
The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables at both a specific
asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and receivables are assessed for
specific impairment. All individually significant receivables not found to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified. Loans and receivables that are not individually significant are assessed collectively
in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of
default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for the management’s
judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses
are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is calculated as the difference between
its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.
All impairment losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.
Impairment losses for loans and receivables are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is recognised in the statement of financial activities.
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Available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the
losses accumulated in the fair value reserve to surplus or deficit. The cumulative loss that is
reclassified from the fair value reserve to surplus or deficit is the difference between the
acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss recognised previously in surplus or deficit. Changes in cumulative
impairment provisions attributable to application of the effective interest method are reflected as
a component of interest income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale debt security increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. However, any subsequent recovery in
the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in fair value
reserve.
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
(CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more
than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.
Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists for all assets. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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3.6

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related
services are rendered by employees.
Short-term employee benefits
All short-term employee benefits, including accumulated compensated absences, are recognised
in the statement of financial activities in the period in which the employees render their services.

3.7

Government grants
Government grants are accounted for on an accrual basis in the statement of financial activities
when there is reasonable assurance that the Company has complied with all the terms and
conditions attached to the grant and that there is reasonable certainty that the grant will be
received.
Grants related to assets
Government grants for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
set off against the cost of assets purchased.
Grants related to income
Government grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit
or loss and are deducted in reporting the related expense on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are recognised.

3.8

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

3.9

Incoming resources
(i)

Provision of medical services
Revenue from patient and related services are recognised when services are performed.
Revenue excludes goods and services taxes or other sales taxes.
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(ii) Government subvention income
Government subvention income is accounted for on an accrual basis in the statement of
financial activities when there is reasonable assurance that the Company has complied with
all the terms and conditions attached to the subvention and that there is reasonable
certainty that the subvention will be received.
(iii) Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.
(iv) Service charge income
Service charge income is recognised when services are rendered.
(v) Retail pharmacy income
Retail pharmacy income is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer.
(vi) Donation income
Donations, other than those specified below, are recognised in the period of receipt.
Property, plant and equipment and cash donation received, which is designated for
property, plant and equipment purchases with individual value of more than $1,000 is
taken to deferred income in the period of receipt. The deferred income is amortised over
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment by crediting to the statement of
financial activities an amount so as to match the related depreciation expense. Cash
donation which is designated for specific use other than for property, plant and equipment
purchases is taken to donation fund account in the period of receipt. The donation income
is recognised in the statement of financial activities when the relevant expenditure is
incurred.

3.10

Investment and other income
Investment and other income comprises net change in fair value of financial assets through
profit or loss, dividend and interest income on funds invested.
Interest income from funds invested is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest
method.

3.11

Resources expended
Resources expended comprise the following:
(i)

Costs of generating funds
Costs of generating funds include the costs of activities carried out to generate incoming
resources, which will be used to undertake charitable activities.
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(ii) Charitable activities
Charitable activities include both direct and related support costs relating to general
running of the Company in generating funds and service delivery.

3.12

Funds structure
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the management in furtherance of
the general objectives of the Company.
Restricted funds are subjected to restrictions on their expenditure imposed by the donor or
through the terms of an appeal.

3.13

Operating leases
Where the Company has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are recognised in the statement of financial activities on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of financial activities as
an integral part of the total lease.

3.14

Reserves policy
The reserves of the Company provide financial stability and the means for the development of
the Company’s activities. The Company maintains the reserves at a level sufficient for its
operating needs.

3.15

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new financial reporting standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning after 1 April 2016, and have not been applied in
preparing these financial statements. The Company is currently assessing the potential impact
of adopting these new standards and interpretations, on the financial statements of the Company.
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
FRS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It also introduces new cost guidance which requires certain costs of
obtaining and fulfilling contracts to be recognised as separate assets when specified criteria are
met. When effective, FRS 115 replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including FRS
18 Revenue, FRS 11 Construction Contracts, INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programmes,
INT FRS 115 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets
from Customers and INT FRS 31 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.
FRS 115 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, with early adoption
permitted.
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FRS 109 Financial Instruments
FRS 109 replaces most of the existing guidance in FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. It includes revised guidance on classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets,
and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from FRS 39.
FRS 109 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, with early adoption
permitted.
FRS 116 Leases
FRS 116 eliminates the lessee’s classification of leases as either operating leases or finance
leases and introduces a single lessee accounting model. Applying the new model, a lessee is
required to recognise right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
FRS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in FRS 17 Leases.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for these two types of leases using the FRS 17 operating lease and finance lease
accounting models respectively. However, FRS 116 requires more extensive disclosures to be
provided by a lessor.
When effective, FRS 116 replaces existing lease accounting guidance, including FRS 17, INT
FRS 104 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, INT FRS 15 Operating
Leases – Incentives, and INT FRS 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease.
FRS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, with early adoption
permitted if FRS 115 is also applied.
As FRS 115, FRS 109 and FRS 116, when effective, will change the existing accounting
standards and guidance applied by the Company in accounting for revenue, financial
instruments and leases, these standards are expected to be relevant to the Company. The
Company does not plan to adopt these standards early.
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Office
equipment
$

350,187
190,721

1,825,151
671,882
(350,888)
(106,321)
2,039,824
16,127,993
(15,792,773)
(20,185)
2,354,859

Property, plant and equipment
Computer
equipment
$

521,418
49,255

(10,080)
530,828
190,591

–
–

1,089,616
248,428
(98,989)
1,239,055
234,009
(15,423)
1,457,641

–

–

–
–

–
–

–

134,110
59,748
(4,285)
189,573
72,002

350,888
(350,888)

–
–

15,792,773
(15,792,773)

Total
$

Medical and
hospital
equipment
$
375,107
77,503

(10,208)
560,465

721,419

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

735,535
800,769
897,218

Construction
work-inprogress

578,439
3,515

(60,058)
392,552
52,325

(1,045)
559,420

261,575

–
–
–

–

(25,975)
555,979
92,304

(5,775)
439,102

328,714
83,961
(10,208)
402,467
64,211
(1,028)
465,650

216,077
341,255
459,844

–

(13,365)
634,918

307,637
42,550
(60,058)
290,129
51,879
(2,280)
339,728

192,704
157,998
93,770

–

Cost
At 1 April 2015
Additions
Government grants
Disposals
At 31 March 2016
Additions
Government grants
Disposals
At 31 March 2017
319,155
62,169
(24,438)
356,886
45,917
(12,115)
390,688

67,470
102,423
99,374

–

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2015
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 March 2016
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 March 2017

259,284
199,093
244,230

–

Carrying amounts
At 1 April 2015
At 31 March 2016
At 31 March 2017

During the year, the Company incurred costs relating to the construction of an admin building amounting to $15,792,773 (2016: $350,888). The
construction costs are fully funded by the Ministry of Health. In accordance with the Company’s accounting policy (note 3.2), the cost of property,
plant and equipment is stated net of related government grants.
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5

Intangible assets

Computer
software
$

Cost
At 1 April 2015
Additions
Government grants
At 31 March 2016
Additions
Disposals
At 31 March 2017

6

456,954
112,518
(10,249)
559,223
73,118
(1,200)
631,141

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 April 2015
Amortisation charge for the year
At 31 March 2016
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 March 2017

451,726
5,466
457,192
57,110
(1,200)
513,102

Carrying amounts
At 1 April 2015
At 31 March 2016
At 31 March 2017

5,228
102,031
118,039

Investments
Non-current investments
Held-to-maturity financial assets:
- Quoted debt securities
Available-for-sale financial assets:
- Quoted investment funds
Current investments
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss:
- Equity fund managed by fund manager
Total investments

2017
$

2016
$

1,007,275

–

6,011,941
7,019,216

–
–

1,892,022

–

8,911,238

–

Debt securities classified as held-to-maturity financial assets bear interest rates of 2.63% to
3.73% (2016: Nil) with maturity dates in 2020 to 2022.
The Company’s exposure to market risk and fair value information related to investments are
disclosed in note 23.
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7

Inventories

Pharmaceutical supplies
Medical and surgical supplies

8

2017
$

2016
$

197,676
86,762
284,438

207,000
85,136
292,136

2017
$

2016
$

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Unbilled receivables
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Amounts due from other hospitals
Government grant receivables
Other receivables
Deposits
Interest receivable
Loans and receivables
Prepayments

299,698
3,038,649
(126,000)
3,212,347
833,782
10,538,187
319,145
1,062,177
15,690
15,981,328
269,113
16,250,441

601,209
4,085,814
(221,000)
4,466,023
532,612
9,422,995
612,133
1,062,177
31,786
16,127,726
600,434
16,728,160

The Company’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables.
Concentration of credit risk relating to trade receivables is limited due to the Company’s many
varied patients and corporate customers. The Company evaluates whether there is any objective
evidence that receivables are impaired, and determines the amount of impairment loss as a result
of the inability of the debtors to make required payments. The Company determines the
estimates based on the financial health of the debtors, aging of the receivables balance, creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.
The Company’s historical experience in the collection of accounts receivable falls within the
recorded allowances. Due to these factors, management believes that no additional credit risk
beyond the amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Company’s trade
receivables.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and receivables (excluding prepayments) at the
reporting date (by type of customer) was as follows:

Individual patients
Corporate customers
Government agencies

2017
$

2016
$

2,926,559
1,660,684
11,394,085
15,981,328

3,928,005
1,882,957
10,316,764
16,127,726

The Company’s most significant customer, a corporate customer, accounts for $722,372 (2016:
$740,155) of the carrying amount of trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2017.
Impairment losses
The ageing of loans and receivables (excluding prepayments) at the reporting date was:

Gross
$
Not past due
Past due up to 90 days
Past due more than 90 days

15,090,340
466,368
550,620
16,107,328

2017
Impairment
losses
$

Net
$

– 15,090,340
–
466,368

(126,000)
424,620
(126,000) 15,981,328

2016
Impairment
losses
$

Gross
$
15,687,126
346,856
314,744
16,348,726

Net
$

– 15,687,126
–
346,856

(221,000)
93,744
(221,000) 16,127,726

The change in impairment loss in respect of receivables during the year is as follows:

At the beginning of the financial year
Impairment loss recognised
Impairment loss utilised
At the end of the financial year

2017
$

2016
$

221,000
52,961
(147,961)
126,000

180,000
163,603
(122,603)
221,000

Based on historical default rates, the Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are
past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, and that apart from the above, no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of receivables not past due. These receivables are
mainly arising from customers that have a good payment record with the Company.
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9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand
Fixed deposits with financial institutions

2017
$

2016
$

25,403,347
11,258,146
36,661,493

21,485,407
9,792,254
31,277,661

The effective interest rate of cash and cash equivalents is 0.68% (2016: 1.18%) per annum.
Interest rate reprices between three months to one year.

10

Restricted funds
2017
$
Patient welfare fund
Sinking fund

1,196,223
3,638,000
4,834,223

2016
$
270,704
2,278,000
2,548,704

(a) Patient welfare fund
Patient welfare fund was set up by the Company to provide financial assistance to the needy
patients. This fund allows the hospital’s patients an alternative avenue for financial aid to the
retrofitting of their homes and purchasing of furniture to enable the patients to have a safe home
environment upon discharge of the patients, as well as assisting the needy patients to purchase
wheelchairs, walking aids and other necessities relating to the welfare of the patients. This fund
also assists the needy patients with the settlement of their outstanding hospital bills.
(b) Sinking fund
Sinking fund was set up for the purpose of major replacements or acquisition of property, plant
and equipment.

11

Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair values of available-for-sale
financial assets until the investments are derecognised or impaired.
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12

Trade and other payables
2017
$
Trade payables
Payables to Government agencies
Accrued operating expenses
Liability for short-term accumulating compensated absences
Other payables

13

818,157
–
5,568,887
443,000
722,536
7,552,580

2016
$
1,547,343
1,849,065
3,378,211
420,000
537,919
7,732,538

Deferred government grants
2017
$
Grants received from Community Silver Trust Fund

1,348,612

2016
$
1,682,532

The Community Silver Trust is a scheme whereby the government will provide a matching
grant of one dollar for every donation dollar raised by eligible organisations. The objectives are
to encourage more donations and provide additional resources for the service providers in the
Intermediate and Long Term Care sector and to enhance capabilities and provide value-added
services to achieve affordable and higher quality care.

14

Provision for unused government grants to be returned
The Company receives government grant from the Ministry of Health for provision of stepdown care services under the Integrated Framework for Health Services for the Elderly. In
accordance with the funding requirements, the Company is required to comply with certain
conditions, failing which unused funds shall be recovered by the Ministry of Health.
The Company has made a provision for such unutilised government grants to be returned to the
Ministry of Health as they did not meet certain of the conditions. As of the date of this report,
the Company is awaiting a reply from the Ministry of Health.

15

Voluntary income
2017
$
Donation income

1,042,725

2016
$
935,674

Included in voluntary income are donations for which tax-exempt receipts of $814,264 (2016:
$800,033) have been issued.
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16

Investment and other income

Net change in fair value of financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Dividend income
Interest income from:
- Fixed deposits
- Debt securities

17

2016
$

90,267
28,543

–
–

179,837
9,062
307,709

144,260
–
144,260

2017
$

2016
$

34,973,129
15,977,276
952,921
790,400
1,579,970
1,179,864
1,160,379
56,613,939

32,170,312
16,196,866
1,149,998
723,432
1,659,476
1,163,364
774,154
53,837,602

2017
$

2016
$

Incoming resources from charitable activities

Government subvention income
Patient and related revenue
Retail pharmacy income
Sale to other hospitals
Rental income
Service charge income
Others

18

2017
$

Cost of generating funds - voluntary income

Fund raising costs

99,867

196,032

The Company incurred fund raising costs of $95,000 (2016: $85,000) payable to a related
charity, Thye Hua Kwan Moral Society, to procure donations for the Company.
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19

Charitable activities

Amortisation of intangible assets
Contract services
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Disallowed input goods and services tax
Medical professional fees
Patient welfare expenses
Operating lease expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Staff costs
Contribution to defined contribution plans
Supplies and consumables
Utilities
Impairment loss on receivables
Low value assets written off
Legal and professional fees
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other expenses

2017
$

2016
$

57,110
5,487,766
234,009
794,690
1,189,800
93,660
4,321,211
440,223
24,895,027
1,655,745
2,417,426
677,019
52,961
2,561
130,520
1,174
951,037
43,401,939

5,466
5,357,492
248,428
405,706
1,286,981
83,266
3,726,560
454,953
24,756,642
1,137,226
2,590,702
610,789
163,603
18,970
101,100
5,782
726,317
41,679,983

Reimbursement of $955,296 (2016: $955,296) was received from the Ministry of Health for
rental expenses and was netted against the operating lease expenses incurred by the Company.

20

Income taxes
The Company is an approved charity organisation under the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and an
institution of a public character under the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134. No provision for
taxation has been made in the financial statements as the Company is a registered charity with
income tax exemption.

21

Related parties
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel of the Company are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The Board
of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Heads of Departments are considered key
management personnel of the Company.
Key management personnel compensation comprised:
2017
$
Short-term employee benefits

82

1,136,393

2016
$
1,175,530
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The annual remuneration of the Company’s three highest paid staff who each received
remuneration exceeding $100,000, in the following bands in the year were as follows:
Number of employees in bands:
$200,001 to $300,000

2017

2016
3

3

The Company also received Board services from the Board of Directors and no remuneration is
paid for their Board services.
Other related parties transactions
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Company if the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Company and the party are subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the transactions with related parties
are as follows:

Legal fees paid to a company related to a director
Fund raising expenses payable to a related charity
Service fee paid to related charities
Service fee received from related charities

22

2017
$

2016
$

48,000
95,000
491,472
(83,896)

22,700
85,000
571,036
(113,389)

Commitments
As at 31 March, commitments for capital expenditure which have not been provided for in the
financial statements were as follows:

Authorised and contracted for:
- building development expenditure

2017
$
5,273,571

2016
$
19,536,870

These will be fully funded by the Ministry of Health.
As at 31 March, the Company had the following commitments for amounts payable under noncancellable operating leases with a term of more than one year:
2017
$
Due within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

3,907,898
7,807,748
11,715,646

2016
$
4,533,732
904,918
5,438,650
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The Company leases out certain areas in its premise. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. None of the leases
include contingent rental. Non-cancellable operating leases receivable are as follows:
2017
$
Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

23

541,284
88,000
629,284

2016
$
2,552,304
629,284
3,181,588

Financial instruments
Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
•
•

credit risk
liquidity risk
market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Company’s management of capital.
Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
company’s risk management framework. The Company has a system of controls in place to
create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the
risks. The management continually monitors the Company’s risk management process to
ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a
counterparty to settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Company, as and when they
fall due.
Management has a credit policy in place which establishes credit limits for corporate customers
and monitors their balances on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on corporate
customers for which credit terms are granted. To minimise the risk of bad debts, non-corporate
customers are generally requested to place an initial deposit at the time of admission to the
hospital. Additional deposit is requested from the customers when the hospital charges exceed a
certain level.
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Whilst management believes that its credit policy is effective in reducing its credit risk exposure
to an acceptable level, it has to adhere to its overruling principle of not turning away patients
who need medical care regardless of their ability to pay. The Company does not require
collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.
The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a
specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss
component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of
payment statistics for similar financial assets.
The allowance account in respect of trade and other receivables is used to record impairment
losses unless the Company is satisfied that no recovery of that amount owing is possible. At
that point, the financial asset is considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the
allowance account is written off against the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset.
Cash and cash equivalents are placed with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.
At the reporting date, except as disclosed in Note 8, there were no other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.
The Company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Company’s operations and to mitigate the
effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Company receives donations from the public and fund
raising activities organised by Thye Hua Kwan Moral Society and subvention income from the
government.
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of financial liabilities reflect the contractual
undiscounted cash flows which are expected to mature within the next one year.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure
to changes in interest rates relates primarily to interest-earning financial assets. Interest rate risk
is managed by the Company on an on-going basis.
Exposure to interest rate risk
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-earning financial
instruments, as reported to the management, was as follows:

Fixed rate instruments
Quoted debt securities
Fixed deposits with financial institutions

2017
$
1,007,275
11,258,146
12,265,421

2016
$
–
–
–

The Company is not exposed to any variable rate financial instruments and a change in interest
rate at the reporting date would not affect surplus or deficit.
Foreign currency risk
The financial assets and liabilities of the Company are primarily denominated in Singapore
dollars. The Company has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk.
Equity price risk
The Company is exposed to equity price changes arising from quoted equity investments
designed at fair value through profit or loss. An increase in the underlying equity prices of the
investments at the reporting date by 10% for the Company would have increased surplus for the
year and accumulated fund by $189,202 (2016: Nil). Similarly, a decrease in the underlying
equity prices by 10% for the Company would have an equal but opposite effect.
This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
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–

6,011,941

15,981,328
36,661,493
52,642,821

–

–

–
–
–
–

–

(7,552,580)
(1,348,612)
(8,901,192)

1,007,275
15,981,328
36,661,493
53,650,096

7,903,963

7,903,963

Fair value
(Level 1)
$

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value, as shown in the statement of financial position,
are as follows. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount
is a reasonable approximate of fair value.

1,007,275

–
–
–
–

(7,552,580)
(1,348,612)
(8,901,192)

16,127,726
31,277,661
47,405,387

Total
carrying
amounts
$

–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

(7,732,538)
(1,682,532)
(9,415,070)

Other
financial
liabilities
$

1,892,022

1,007,275

–
–
–

16,127,726
31,277,661
47,405,387

(7,732,538)
(1,682,532)
(9,415,070)

Loans and
receivables
$

6

–
–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

Availablefor-sale
$

2017
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments

6
8
9

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

Held-tomaturity
$

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Investments
Trade and other receivables *
Cash and cash equivalents

12
13

–
–
–

–
–
–

Designated at
fair value
$

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables
Deferred government grants

8
9

–
–
–

Note

2016
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables *
Cash and cash equivalents

12
13
Excludes prepayments

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables
Deferred government grants
*
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Determination of fair values
Investment in equity fund managed by fund manager
The fair values of equity fund managed by fund manager classified as fair value through profit
or loss have been determined by reference to the quoted bid prices of the underlying equity
securities at the reporting date.
Investment in quoted investment funds
The fair values of quoted investment funds classified as available-for-sale financial assets have
been determined by reference to the quoted bid prices at the reporting date.
Other financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year
(including trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables)
approximate their fair values because of the short period to maturity.

88

FS30

pdf

1

28/7/17

10:29 AM

17 Ang Mo Kio Ave 9, Singapore 569766
Tel: +65 6453 8033 Fax: +65 6453 1729
Email: enquiry@amkh.org.sg
Web: www.amkh.com.sg
Facebook: www.facebook.com/amkthkh
90

ANG MO KIO - THYE HUA KWAN HOSPITAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

